
 
 

San Joaquin County 
Treasury Oversight Committee 

Meeting Agenda 
 
 
Date:  October 19, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Location: Microsoft Teams meeting  
   

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  
Click here to join the meeting  
Meeting ID: 253 377 685 978  
Passcode: 584FMZ  
Download Teams | Join on the web 
Join with a video conferencing device  
sjcisd@m.webex.com  
Video Conference ID: 112 653 141 9  
Alternate VTC instructions  
Or call in (audio only)  
+1 209-645-4071,,770130605#   United States, Stockton  
Phone Conference ID: 770 130 605#  
Find a local number | Reset PIN  

 
Call to order 
 

1. Roll Call: Phonxay Keokham, Jeff Woltkamp, Sandra Regalo, Peter Foggiato 
 

2. Approval of Minutes for the Treasury Oversight Committee Meeting of October 20, 2022 
(Attachment A) 
 

3. Financial Statements & Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (Attachment B) 
 

4. Treasury Balance Summary for Month Ending September 30, 2023 (Attachment C) 
 

5. Draft 2024 Investment Policy (Attachments D1-D2) 
 

6. Treasury Oversight Committee Audit Questionnaire (Attachment E) 
 

7. Comments from Committee Members 
 

8. Adjournment 



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

San Joaquin County 
Treasury Oversight Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
Date:  October 20, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. 

Location: Microsoft Teams meeting  
  Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 295 740 108 465 
Passcode: qZJNXc 
Download Teams | Join on the web 
Join with a video conferencing device 
sjcisd@m.webex.com 
Video Conference ID: 118 328 791 5 
Alternate VTC instructions 
Or call in (audio only) 
+1 209-645-4071,,89541219# United States, Stockton 
Phone Conference ID: 895 412 19# 
  

 
 

Present:   Phonxay Keokham, Sandra Regalo, Scott Anderson, Dr. Cathy Nichols-Washer 

Absent:    Jeffery Woltkamp 

Others:  Mandy Matta, Tod Hill, Wyman Jeung (in at 2:10 p.m.) 

Interruption: Participation in the Great Shake Out 2:20 p.m. to 2:23 p.m. 

 

Phonxay Keokham called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.  Mr. Keokham stated that the Microsoft 
Teams meeting would be recorded for the purpose of drafting the meeting minutes.   

 

I. Introductions 

 
Mr. Jeffery Woltkamp has Mr. Tod Hill sitting in for him and Mr. Wyman Jeung may also join the 
meeting.   

 



 
 

2 
 

 

II. Approval of Minutes of the County Treasury Oversight Committee Meeting of 
October 22, 2021 

 
Mr. Keokham requested a motion to approve the meeting minutes of October 22, 2021.  The 
motion was approved by Sandy Regalo and seconded by Scott Anderson.  All present members 
were in favor with a unanimous vote to approve the minutes of October 22, 2021. 
 

III. Financial Statements & Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

 
Mr. Keokham stated the Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021, prepared by the 
Auditor Controller’s Office states it was presented fairly in all material respects.  The June 30, 
2021, Treasury balance was $4.3 billion which was a 15% increase from the previous year.  Net 
income was $20.2 million, a decrease of 66%, the interest apportionment factor was 0.54 and the 
weighted average maturity was 485 days.  The Auditor Controller is currently working on the audit 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, which may be completed by the end of the year. 

 

Mr. Anderson requested an explanation of the increase in the fee percentage calculation.  Ms. 
Matta said she would research the item. 

 

Mr. Keokham requested a motion to accept the Financial Statements & Audit Report for Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2021.  The motion to accept was provided by Mr. Scott Anderson and 
seconded by Dr. Cathy Nichols-Washer.  All present members were in favor, with a unanimous 
vote to accept the Financial Statements and Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021. 

  

IV. Treasury Balance Summary for Month Ending September 30, 2022 

 

Mr. Keokham reported that the balance as of September 30, 2022, is $5 billion, which is an increase 
from the prior year of $4.3 billion.  The highest balance of the pool was $5.4 billion.  The interest 
earned for 2021 was $20.2 million and $18.1 million for 2022, a decrease of $2.1 million.  Mr. 
Keokham also provided an economic update and stated the annual budget for interest earned was 
estimated at $17.5 million, but the most recent quarter alone earned $13.5 million, this is all due 
to the increase in rates.  The actual interest earned for the year could exceed $60 million.  Mr. 
Keokham provided a year-over-year summary of Treasury rates and explained that, because of our 
low weighted average maturity, the County will be able to take advantage of the current increasing 
rates. 

 

Ms. Regalo provided the motion to accept the Treasury Balance Report and it was seconded by 
Dr. Cathy Nichols-Washer.  All present members were in favor with a unanimous vote to accept 
the Treasury Balance Summary Report ending September 30, 2022.  



 
 

3 
 

 

 

V. Draft 2023 Investment Policy 

 
Mr. Keokham explained that there were two main updates made to the Investment Policy.  The 
individual names of the Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) were removed in exchange for 
just the general term.  Supranationals were also added to the list of authorized investments.  Mr. 
Keokham explained that this investment type has been approved by the Government Code since 
2014.  The County has monitored the program and has deemed it a safe investment alternative and 
various other counties and cities purchase Supranationals.  The County will limit this investment 
type to 10% of the investment pool.  Mr. Scott Anderson asked how long the investment type has 
been available and why would the rates be more attractive than a standard bond.  Mr. Keokham 
replied that the investment has been available since 2015 and Ms. Matta replied by stating the rates 
can be different due to implied versus actual backing of the United States Government. Mr. Scott 
Anderson indicated he has been educating himself about Supranationals but is still uncomfortable 
since he is still trying to understand the investment type.  Mr. Keokham indicated that the County 
will continue to purchase only the highest-rated investments.  Ms. Regalo indicated that she has 
read some of the material on Supranationals and agrees it is a good investment option and 
appreciates that the county is conservative in its investment selections. Mr. Anderson asked if the 
investment is domestic, and Mr. Keokham explained that there are different types of 
Supranationals.  The County will only invest in the three that are allowed per the Government 
Code. Mr. Anderson expressed concern about Supranationals as an investment type and Mr. 
Keokham said we will continue to send out educational materials.  

 

Mr. Keokham asked if there was a motion to accept the draft of the Investment Policy.  Dr. Cathy-
Washer made the motion to accept the draft of the Investment Policy.  Ms. Regalo seconded the 
motion.  The motion was unanimously accepted by all the present members. 

 

VI. Treasury Oversight Committee Audit Questionnaire 

 

Mr. Keokham instructed the TOC to complete and return the questionnaire to the Treasury for 
filing and that Mandy Matta will be sending out the forms for completion. 

 

VII. Comments from Committee Members 

 

Mr. Keokham provided a brief update on some Treasury items.  He addressed security and the 
Information Security Division (ISD) procedures set in place to backup files.  Mr. Keokham 
discussed business continuity including the new Wi-Fi hot spot, Treasury laptops, alternative 
banking relationships set in place in the County’s primary bank is compromised.  Mr. Keokham 
invited the Treasury Oversight Committee members to the Security Symposium scheduled for 



 
 

4 
 

January 25, 2023.  Mr. Jeung gave more detailed information on the different levels of security 
that ISD provides such as the monitoring of security threats.  Mr. Hill asked about the funds held 
at alternative banks.  Ms. Matta provided a breakdown of funds held at State Street Bank and Five 
Star Bank.  

 
                                     
VIII.  Adjournment 

 

 The meeting was adjourned at 2:37 p.m.  

 
 



















































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2023 
Monthly Investment 

Report 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



Currency

Summary of Investments (see attachment for details):

   Sweep Account

   Bank Deposits

   Joint Powers Authority Programs

   Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

   Commercial Paper

   Medium Term Notes

   Supranationals

   U.S. Treasuries

   Federal Agencies

Total Investments

Bank Balance

    Bank of the West - Closing Ledger Balance

    Bank of the West - Transactions Pending

Total Treasury Balance

115,000,000.00             

2,376,112.13                 

October 6, 2023

SEPTEMBER 2023 INVESTMENT REPORT

I, Phonxay Keokham, Treasurer-Tax Collector, County of San Joaquin, State of California, do hereby certify under oath that on
September 30, 2023, the books of said County showed that there was $5,091,119,271.94 (FIVE BILLION, NINETY ONE
MILLION, ONE HUNDRED NINETEEN THOUSAND, TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY ONE DOLLARS AND NINETY
FOUR CENTS) in the Treasury as follows:

106,972.96$                  

880,000,000.00             

385,781,998.62             

1,000,000.00                 

114,752,842.36             

9,598,600.00                 

221,214,418.08             

3,326,994,470.77          

5,056,718,441.96          

21,510,847.61               

All investments are in compliance with the County's Investment Policy. Market values are based on information from either the
trustee, broker, Wall Street Journal, or other sources approved by the Treasurer-Tax Collector. Based on revenue and expenditure
projections and information known to the Treasurer-Tax Collector, the Treasury will be able to meet its pool's expenditure
requirement for the next six months. The weighted average maturity of the investments within the treasury pool, assuming all
callable bonds are held to maturity, is 480 days.

12,783,009.41               

5,091,119,271.94$        

Wyman Jeung
Assistant Treasurer-Tax 

Collector

Mandy Matta
Chief Deputy Treasurer-Tax 

Collector

Joseph Caswell
Chief Deputy Treasurer-Tax 

Collector

PHONXAY KEOKHAM, CPA
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

1



TOTAL INVESTMENTS
$5,056,718,441.96

Asset Category Cost Value Percentage Policy Limit Compliance
Sweep Account 2,376,112.13 0.05% 10% Yes
Bank Deposits 115,000,000.00 2.27% 10% Yes
Joint Powers Authority Programs 880,000,000.00 17.40% 30% Yes
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 1,000,000.00 0.02% Program Limit* Yes
Commercial Paper 385,781,998.62 7.63% 30% Yes
Medium Term Notes 9,598,600.00 0.19% 30% Yes
Supranationals 114,752,842.36 2.27% 10% Yes
U.S Treasuries 221,214,418.08 4.37% 100% Yes
Federal Agencies 3,326,994,470.77 65.79% 100% Yes
Total Investments $5,056,718,441.96 100.00%
   * Effective January 1, 2020, LAIF's program limit for regular accounts is $75,000,000.00.

SEPTEMBER 2023 INVESTMENT REPORT
PORTFOLIO STATISTICS

        DURATION          
480

YIELD
3.98%

1.85% 7.63%

70.36%

17.90%
2.27%

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

Not
Rated*

A1 AA+ AAAm AAA

S&P RATINGS
*Some cash accounts may not be rated.

SAFETY
(in billions)

30.31%

34.58%

9.11% 6.86% 5.34%

13.79%

$0

$1

$2

60 Days 61 Days
to

1 Year

2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year

LIQUIDITY
(in billions)

1.46% 1.81%
2.30%

2.88% 2.92% 3.06% 3.26% 3.49% 3.51% 3.63% 3.62% 3.78% 3.98%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23

YIELD

0.24%
2.46%
2.83%

5.45%
9.51%

11.70%
24.30%

43.51%

$0 $1 $2 $3

Medium Term Notes
Federal National Mortgage Association

Supranationals
U.S. Treasuries

Commercial Paper
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

Federal Farm Credit Bureau
Federal Home Loan Bank

TOP ISSUERS
(in billions)

2



San Joaquin County

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
September 30, 2023

Quantity
Security 

Identification
Settlement 

Date Security 
Maturity 

Date Rate Cost Value
Cost 
Price Market Value

Accrued 
Interest

Market Value               
+ Accrued 

Interest
% of 

Portfolio 

YTM 
@ 

Cost Credit Rating 1 Credit Rating 2

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
2,376,112.13 SWEEP3559 3/31/2012 Sweep Account - BMO N/A 5.020 2,376,112.13 100.00 2,376,112.13 2,376,112.13 0.05 5.020 Not Rated Not Rated

15,000,000.00 MM0888 2/29/2012 Bank Deposit - BMO N/A 5.060 15,000,000.00 100.00 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.29 5.060 Not Rated Not Rated
75,000,000.00 FS8195 5/25/2022 Bank Deposit - Five Star Bank N/A 5.000 75,000,000.00 100.00 75,000,000.00 75,000,000.00 1.47 5.000 Not Rated Not Rated
25,000,000.00 SSB5625 8/15/2022 Bank Deposit - State Street Bank N/A 5.210 25,000,000.00 100.00 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.210 Fitch-Aaa-mmf S&P-AAAm

860,000,000.00 CAMP6088 4/12/2019 Joint Powers Authority Program-CAMP N/A 5.550 860,000,000.00 100.00 860,000,000.00 860,000,000.00 16.87 5.550 Fitch-Aaa-mmf S&P-AAAm
20,000,000.00 CALTRUST9600 4/13/2023 Joint Powers Authority Program-CalTRUST N/A 5.360 20,000,000.00 100.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 0.39 5.360 Not Rated S&P-AAAm

1,000,000.00 LAIF9000 7/31/1988 LAIF N/A 3.550 1,000,000.00 100.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.02 3.550 Not Rated Not Rated
998,376,112.13 998,376,112.13 998,376,112.13 998,376,112.13 19.58 4.964

COMMERCIAL PAPER
25,000,000.00 86563HXT2 6/20/2023 Sumitomo Mitsui 10/27/2023 5.350 24,520,729.17 98.08 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.455 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
15,000,000.00 74271UY61 5/19/2023 Procter & Gamble 11/6/2023 5.060 14,639,475.00 97.60 15,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 0.29 5.185 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 53948BYL7 2/24/2023 Lloyds 11/20/2023 5.240 24,021,138.89 96.08 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.454 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
10,000,000.00 89233HZN7 6/13/2023 Toyota 12/22/2023 5.230 9,721,066.67 97.21 10,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.20 5.380 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
50,000,000.00 21687BZT1 6/30/2023 Rabobank 12/27/2023 5.400 48,650,000.00 97.30 50,000,000.00 0.00 50,000,000.00 0.98 5.550 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 62479MZV8 7/3/2023 MUFG Bank 12/29/2023 5.540 24,311,347.22 97.25 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.697 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 60689FBF4 8/9/2023 Mizuho 2/15/2024 5.580 24,263,750.00 97.06 24,466,000.00 0.00 24,466,000.00 0.49 5.749 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
50,000,000.00 09659BCB4 6/16/2023 BNP Paribas 3/11/2024 5.460 47,960,083.33 95.92 50,000,000.00 0.00 50,000,000.00 0.98 5.692 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
50,000,000.00 78013VCN0 6/28/2023 Royal Bank of Canada 3/22/2024 5.540 47,937,888.89 95.88 50,000,000.00 0.00 50,000,000.00 0.98 5.778 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 22533TCR5 6/29/2023 Credit Agricole 3/25/2024 5.580 23,953,750.00 95.82 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.824 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 22533TDS2 8/4/2023 Credit Agricole 4/26/2024 5.590 23,967,402.78 95.87 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.831 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
35,000,000.00 63873JF70 9/12/2023 Natixis 6/7/2024 5.670 33,517,137.50 95.76 35,000,000.00 0.00 35,000,000.00 0.69 5.921 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
15,000,000.00 63873JFM7 9/25/2023 Natixis 6/21/2024 5.670 14,362,125.00 95.75 15,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 0.29 5.922 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1
25,000,000.00 62479LFM2 9/28/2023 MUFG Bank 6/21/2024 5.630 23,956,104.17 95.82 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.49 5.875 Moodys-P1 S&P-A1

400,000,000.00 385,781,998.62 399,466,000.00 0.00 399,466,000.00 7.85 5.689

MEDIUM TERM NOTES
10,000,000.00 037833BY5 2/23/2023 Apple 2/23/2026 3.250 9,598,600.00 95.99 9,561,700.00 33,402.78 9,595,102.78 0.20 4.700 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
10,000,000.00 9,598,600.00 9,561,700.00 33,402.78 9,595,102.78 0.20 4.700

SUPRANATIONALS
25,000,000.00 4581X0DV7 9/27/2023 IADB 4/20/2026 0.875 22,546,917.26 90.19 22,574,750.00 97,222.22 22,671,972.22 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AAA
25,000,000.00 459058JW4 9/11/2023 IBRD 4/20/2028 1.375 21,780,789.50 87.12 21,590,500.00 152,777.78 21,743,277.78 0.49 4.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AAA
25,000,000.00 45906M4E8 6/26/2023 IBRD 6/26/2028 4.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,444,250.00 293,750.00 24,738,000.00 0.49 4.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AAA
25,000,000.00 459058KT9 7/31/2023 IBRD 7/12/2028 3.500 24,095,159.57 96.38 23,716,000.00 189,583.33 23,905,583.33 0.49 4.320 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AAA
25,000,000.00 4581X0DX3 8/28/2023 IADB 7/20/2028 1.125 21,329,976.03 85.32 21,154,750.00 54,687.50 21,209,437.50 0.49 4.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AAA

125,000,000.00 114,752,842.36 113,480,250.00 788,020.83 114,268,270.83 2.45 4.564

U.S. TREASURIES
25,000,000.00 91282CAP6 4/15/2021 Treasury 10/15/2023 0.125 24,945,312.50 99.78 24,953,000.00 14,344.26 24,967,344.26 0.49 0.213 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 91282CAW1 4/13/2021 Treasury 11/15/2023 0.250 24,997,500.00 99.99 24,845,500.00 23,437.50 24,868,937.50 0.49 0.254 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 912796ZD4 6/1/2023 Treasury 11/30/2023 5.180 24,345,305.56 97.38 24,782,000.00 0.00 24,782,000.00 0.49 5.393 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 91282CBE0 4/13/2021 Treasury 1/15/2024 0.125 24,888,862.50 99.56 24,626,500.00 6,538.72 24,633,038.72 0.49 0.287 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 912797GQ4 9/19/2023 Treasury 3/7/2024 5.240 24,381,388.89 97.53 24,421,250.00 0.00 24,421,250.00 0.49 5.448 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 912828D56 3/26/2021 Treasury 8/15/2024 2.375 26,675,000.00 106.70 24,340,750.00 74,218.75 24,414,968.75 0.49 0.385 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 912828YM6 4/8/2021 Treasury 10/31/2024 1.500 25,912,689.25 103.65 23,982,250.00 155,910.32 24,138,160.32 0.49 0.465 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 91282CCH2 9/25/2023 Treasury 6/30/2028 1.250 21,443,359.38 85.77 21,416,000.00 78,125.00 21,494,125.00 0.49 4.610 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 9128284V9 8/15/2023 Treasury 8/15/2028 2.875 23,625,000.00 94.50 23,092,750.00 89,843.75 23,182,593.75 0.49 4.103 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

225,000,000.00 221,214,418.08 216,460,000.00 442,418.30 216,902,418.30 4.41 2.351

FEDERAL AGENCIES
25,000,000.00 313384MM8 12/23/2022 FHLB 10/3/2023 4.590 24,094,750.00 96.38 24,996,250.00 0.00 24,996,250.00 0.49 4.762 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384MU0 12/23/2022 FHLB 10/10/2023 4.590 24,072,437.50 96.29 24,971,500.00 0.00 24,971,500.00 0.49 4.767 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMVN9 4/12/2021 FFCB 10/12/2023 0.250 24,996,250.00 99.99 24,964,000.00 29,166.67 24,993,166.67 0.49 0.256 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AVNK4 4/24/2023 FHLB 10/24/2023 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,990,750.00 229,166.67 25,219,916.67 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATJB4 10/26/2022 FHLB 10/26/2023 4.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,980,750.00 481,250.00 25,462,000.00 0.49 4.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384NM7 2/28/2023 FHLB 10/27/2023 4.920 24,176,583.33 96.71 24,911,250.00 0.00 24,911,250.00 0.49 5.088 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384NR6 12/28/2022 FHLB 10/31/2023 4.640 24,010,777.78 96.04 24,894,750.00 0.00 24,894,750.00 0.49 4.831 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EK4X1 11/1/2019 FFCB 11/1/2023 1.600 24,952,500.00 99.81 24,919,500.00 165,555.56 25,085,055.56 0.49 1.649 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATTY3 11/2/2022 FHLB 11/2/2023 4.750 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,977,500.00 488,194.44 25,465,694.44 0.49 4.750 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

3



San Joaquin County

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
September 30, 2023

Quantity
Security 

Identification
Settlement 

Date Security 
Maturity 

Date Rate Cost Value
Cost 
Price Market Value

Accrued 
Interest

Market Value               
+ Accrued 

Interest
% of 

Portfolio 

YTM 
@ 

Cost Credit Rating 1 Credit Rating 2

25,000,000.00 3133ENY46 11/3/2022 FFCB 11/3/2023 4.625 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,978,000.00 472,135.42 25,450,135.42 0.49 4.625 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMPB2 2/3/2021 FFCB 11/3/2023 0.170 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,875,500.00 17,354.17 24,892,854.17 0.49 0.170 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMPB2 2/3/2021 FFCB 11/3/2023 0.170 24,993,750.00 99.98 24,875,500.00 17,354.17 24,892,854.17 0.49 0.179 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATQA8 10/19/2022 FHLB 11/17/2023 4.680 24,999,400.00 100.00 24,967,250.00 432,250.00 25,399,500.00 0.49 4.678 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AUCE2 12/22/2022 FHLB 11/22/2023 4.800 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,969,500.00 326,666.67 25,296,166.67 0.49 4.800 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXCA0 11/24/2020 FHLMC 11/24/2023 0.320 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,813,750.00 28,000.00 24,841,750.00 0.49 0.320 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AKGL4 11/27/2020 FHLB 11/27/2023 0.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,795,250.00 25,625.00 24,820,875.00 0.49 0.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASYN3 8/30/2022 FHLB 11/28/2023 3.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,917,500.00 296,527.78 25,214,027.78 0.49 3.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMHL9 11/30/2020 FFCB 11/30/2023 0.310 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,785,250.00 25,833.33 24,811,083.33 0.49 0.310 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATZG5 11/30/2022 FHLB 11/30/2023 4.875 24,998,350.00 99.99 24,974,750.00 406,250.00 25,381,000.00 0.49 4.882 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATVJ3 11/7/2022 FHLB 12/6/2023 5.000 25,016,400.00 100.07 24,970,750.00 395,833.33 25,366,583.33 0.49 4.932 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3135GA6J5 12/7/2020 FNMA 12/7/2023 0.320 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,768,250.00 25,111.11 24,793,361.11 0.49 0.320 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATBL0 9/8/2022 FHLB 12/8/2023 3.625 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,916,500.00 281,944.44 25,198,444.44 0.49 3.625 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384QF9 6/2/2023 FHLB 12/8/2023 5.160 24,322,750.00 97.29 24,762,500.00 0.00 24,762,500.00 0.49 5.304 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AUAD6 12/14/2022 FHLB 12/14/2023 4.875 25,035,250.00 100.14 24,964,250.00 358,854.17 25,323,104.17 0.49 4.729 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384QN2 3/14/2023 FHLB 12/15/2023 4.900 24,060,833.33 96.24 24,737,750.00 0.00 24,737,750.00 0.49 5.091 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AUBV5 12/19/2022 FHLB 12/19/2023 4.750 24,990,700.00 99.96 24,952,250.00 333,159.72 25,285,409.72 0.49 4.789 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AUCS1 12/21/2022 FHLB 12/21/2023 4.750 24,997,500.00 99.99 24,960,250.00 326,562.50 25,286,812.50 0.49 4.760 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AKKP0 12/22/2020 FHLB 12/22/2023 0.190 24,968,750.00 99.88 24,704,000.00 12,930.56 24,716,930.56 0.49 0.232 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AKKP0 12/22/2020 FHLB 12/22/2023 0.190 24,975,500.00 99.90 24,704,000.00 12,930.56 24,716,930.56 0.49 0.223 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3133ENZE3 6/22/2022 FFCB 12/22/2023 3.490 20,000,000.00 100.00 19,911,200.00 190,011.11 20,101,211.11 0.39 3.490 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384QZ5-1 12/28/2022 FHLB 12/26/2023 4.640 23,830,333.33 95.32 24,699,000.00 0.00 24,699,000.00 0.49 4.868 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMLT7 12/28/2020 FFCB 12/28/2023 0.210 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,683,750.00 13,416.67 24,697,166.67 0.49 0.210 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3135GAC33 12/29/2020 FNMA 12/29/2023 0.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,693,500.00 18,958.33 24,712,458.33 0.49 0.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASKB4 6/29/2022 FHLB 12/29/2023 3.350 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,872,750.00 211,701.39 25,084,451.39 0.49 3.350 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
10,000,000.00 3130AU6Z2 12/16/2022 FHLB 1/16/2024 4.810 10,000,000.00 100.00 9,976,600.00 98,872.22 10,075,472.22 0.20 4.810 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AVNG3 4/17/2023 FHLB 1/17/2024 5.010 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,966,000.00 567,104.17 25,533,104.17 0.49 5.010 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALTL8 4/23/2021 FHLB 1/23/2024 0.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,599,500.00 13,958.33 24,613,458.33 0.49 0.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AVK27 3/30/2023 FHLB 1/30/2024 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,963,250.00 0.00 24,963,250.00 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AV7G1 3/7/2023 FHLB 2/7/2024 5.350 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,978,000.00 85,451.39 25,063,451.39 0.49 5.350 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384SW0 2/27/2023 FHLB 2/9/2024 4.975 23,801,163.19 95.20 24,541,750.00 0.00 24,541,750.00 0.49 5.226 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AM6J6 5/13/2021 FHLB 2/13/2024 0.340 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,527,500.00 32,347.22 24,559,847.22 0.49 0.340 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 313384TR0-1 2/28/2023 FHLB 2/28/2024 5.020 23,727,569.44 94.91 24,475,500.00 0.00 24,475,500.00 0.49 5.289 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATUQ8 12/20/2022 FHLB 3/8/2024 4.750 25,007,150.00 100.03 24,919,500.00 72,569.44 24,992,069.44 0.49 4.726 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AK3R5 9/8/2020 FHLB 3/8/2024 0.370 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,448,000.00 5,652.78 24,453,652.78 0.49 0.370 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
15,000,000.00 3133EMTD4 3/15/2021 FFCB 3/15/2024 0.370 15,000,000.00 100.00 14,653,950.00 2,312.50 14,656,262.50 0.29 0.370 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AKKF2 12/28/2020 FHLB 3/28/2024 0.270 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,368,500.00 375.00 24,368,875.00 0.49 0.270 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMVD1 4/5/2021 FFCB 4/5/2024 0.330 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,341,000.00 40,104.17 24,381,104.17 0.49 0.330 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133ELVX9 4/8/2020 FFCB 4/8/2024 0.875 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,399,750.00 104,513.89 24,504,263.89 0.49 0.875 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
15,000,000.00 3135GAGN5 4/13/2023 FNMA 4/12/2024 5.000 15,000,000.00 100.00 14,954,250.00 347,916.67 15,302,166.67 0.29 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AM2C5 5/3/2021 FHLB 5/3/2024 0.400 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,252,000.00 40,833.33 24,292,833.33 0.49 0.400 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
10,000,000.00 3135GAGH8 4/10/2023 FNMA 5/6/2024 5.050 10,000,000.00 100.00 9,963,200.00 238,472.22 10,201,672.22 0.20 5.050 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXBD5 11/25/2020 FHLMC 5/15/2024 0.360 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,206,750.00 33,750.00 24,240,500.00 0.49 0.360 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXBD5 12/9/2020 FHLMC 5/15/2024 0.360 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,206,750.00 33,750.00 24,240,500.00 0.49 0.360 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GY2V3 11/17/2022 FHLMC 5/17/2024 5.200 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,926,000.00 480,277.78 25,406,277.78 0.49 5.200 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALAK0 2/24/2021 FHLB 5/24/2024 0.250 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,156,500.00 21,875.00 24,178,375.00 0.49 0.250 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3130ALPA6 3/30/2021 FHLB 5/30/2024 0.470 20,000,000.00 100.00 19,336,400.00 0.00 19,336,400.00 0.39 0.470 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GWJ64 9/10/2020 FHLMC 6/10/2024 0.400 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,122,000.00 5,555.56 24,127,555.56 0.49 0.400 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3130A1XJ2 6/14/2019 FHLB 6/14/2024 2.875 20,906,400.00 104.53 19,619,400.00 169,305.56 19,788,705.56 0.39 1.920 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXUW2 6/14/2022 FHLMC 6/14/2024 3.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,552,000.00 220,833.33 24,772,833.33 0.49 3.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AUAB0 12/27/2022 FHLB 6/27/2024 5.200 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,897,750.00 335,833.33 25,233,583.33 0.49 5.200 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASHN2 6/28/2022 FHLB 6/28/2024 3.480 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,620,500.00 222,333.33 24,842,833.33 0.49 3.480 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3133EKTV8 7/1/2019 FFCB 7/1/2024 1.900 20,036,620.00 100.18 19,456,200.00 93,944.44 19,550,144.44 0.39 1.861 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPPC3 7/3/2023 FFCB 7/3/2024 5.375 25,010,000.00 100.04 24,958,000.00 324,739.58 25,282,739.58 0.49 5.333 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWDD9 6/6/2023 FHLB 7/3/2024 5.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,936,000.00 435,416.67 25,371,416.67 0.49 5.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPPJ8 7/5/2023 FFCB 7/5/2024 5.570 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,947,250.00 328,784.72 25,276,034.72 0.49 5.570 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASLH0 7/19/2022 FHLB 7/19/2024 3.650 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,620,000.00 179,965.28 24,799,965.28 0.49 3.650 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALWZ3 4/22/2021 FHLB 7/22/2024 0.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,000,250.00 54,861.11 24,055,111.11 0.49 0.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AM5L2 5/6/2021 FHLB 8/6/2024 0.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,950,250.00 50,000.00 24,000,250.00 0.49 0.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AKX84 2/23/2021 FFCB 8/23/2024 0.270 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,847,750.00 6,937.50 23,854,687.50 0.49 0.270 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALDJ0 2/26/2021 FHLB 8/26/2024 0.330 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,850,750.00 7,791.67 23,858,541.67 0.49 0.330 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

4



San Joaquin County

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
September 30, 2023

Quantity
Security 

Identification
Settlement 

Date Security 
Maturity 

Date Rate Cost Value
Cost 
Price Market Value

Accrued 
Interest

Market Value               
+ Accrued 

Interest
% of 

Portfolio 

YTM 
@ 

Cost Credit Rating 1 Credit Rating 2

25,000,000.00 3130ASYV5 9/13/2022 FHLB 8/28/2024 4.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,645,750.00 88,888.89 24,734,638.89 0.49 4.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXT61 9/13/2022 FHLMC 9/13/2024 4.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,625,750.00 47,222.22 24,672,972.22 0.49 4.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133ENM80 9/19/2022 FFCB 9/19/2024 4.340 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,696,250.00 33,152.78 24,729,402.78 0.49 4.340 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AQBU6 12/30/2021 FHLB 9/30/2024 1.100 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,921,500.00 0.00 23,921,500.00 0.49 1.100 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALTH7 3/30/2021 FHLB 9/30/2024 0.510 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,779,500.00 0.00 23,779,500.00 0.49 0.510 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYAQ5 12/30/2022 FHLMC 9/30/2024 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,825,500.00 0.00 24,825,500.00 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWKA7 7/24/2023 FHLB 10/24/2024 5.625 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,928,500.00 257,812.50 25,186,312.50 0.49 5.625 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATHG5 10/25/2022 FHLB 10/25/2024 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,815,250.00 538,194.44 25,353,444.44 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALRM8 3/29/2021 FHLB 11/29/2024 0.600 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,625,500.00 416.67 23,625,916.67 0.49 0.600 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EN3M0 12/5/2022 FFCB 12/5/2024 4.625 24,997,500.00 99.99 24,726,000.00 369,357.64 25,095,357.64 0.49 4.630 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EN4N7 12/20/2022 FFCB 12/20/2024 4.250 24,921,750.00 99.69 24,656,000.00 295,138.89 24,951,138.89 0.49 4.415 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMLP5 12/23/2020 FFCB 12/23/2024 0.320 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,469,500.00 21,555.56 23,491,055.56 0.49 0.320 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWJQ4 6/30/2023 FHLB 12/27/2024 5.625 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,901,500.00 351,562.50 25,253,062.50 0.49 5.625 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3134GXJM7 12/30/2020 FHLMC 12/30/2024 0.330 20,000,000.00 100.00 18,762,200.00 16,500.00 18,778,700.00 0.39 0.330 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASKM0 7/22/2022 FHLB 1/22/2025 4.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,485,750.00 188,888.89 24,674,638.89 0.49 4.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3130AJ2C2 2/3/2020 FHLB 2/3/2025 1.625 20,000,000.00 100.00 18,990,000.00 51,458.33 19,041,458.33 0.39 1.625 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMJP8 12/10/2020 FFCB 3/10/2025 0.490 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,283,750.00 6,805.56 23,290,555.56 0.49 0.490 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EMTQ5 3/17/2021 FFCB 3/17/2025 0.700 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,336,500.00 6,319.44 23,342,819.44 0.49 0.700 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3133EMBK7 12/11/2020 FFCB 4/7/2025 0.450 20,000,000.00 100.00 18,554,800.00 43,250.00 18,598,050.00 0.39 0.450 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ALU93 3/30/2021 FHLB 6/30/2025 0.750 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,100,500.00 0.00 23,100,500.00 0.49 0.750 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AQBW2 12/15/2021 FHLB 9/15/2025 1.330 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,195,250.00 13,854.17 23,209,104.17 0.49 1.330 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GX7L2 11/23/2022 FHLMC 11/24/2025 5.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,788,750.00 481,250.00 25,270,000.00 0.49 5.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3135G06J7 12/10/2020 FNMA 12/10/2025 0.650 25,012,500.00 100.05 22,636,500.00 49,652.78 22,686,152.78 0.49 0.640 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EN5E6 12/29/2022 FFCB 12/29/2025 4.000 24,944,050.00 99.78 24,422,500.00 252,777.78 24,675,277.78 0.49 4.080 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133ENR77 10/12/2022 FFCB 1/12/2026 4.920 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,605,500.00 266,500.00 24,872,000.00 0.49 4.920 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYLK6 3/20/2023 FHLMC 3/20/2026 5.750 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,827,500.00 39,930.56 24,867,430.56 0.49 5.750 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AM6U1 4/28/2021 FHLB 4/28/2026 1.250 25,000,000.00 100.00 22,789,500.00 131,944.44 22,921,444.44 0.49 0.996 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPKL8 6/1/2023 FFCB 6/1/2026 5.360 24,975,000.00 99.90 24,714,500.00 442,944.44 25,157,444.44 0.49 5.397 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133ENZF0 6/22/2022 FFCB 6/22/2026 4.400 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,339,750.00 299,444.44 24,639,194.44 0.49 4.400 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
15,000,000.00 3134GYUL4 6/30/2023 FHLMC 6/26/2026 5.750 15,000,000.00 100.00 14,888,250.00 215,625.00 15,103,875.00 0.29 5.750 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWDJ6 6/26/2023 FHLB 6/26/2026 5.700 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,799,250.00 372,083.33 25,171,333.33 0.49 5.700 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWRD4 7/28/2023 FHLB 7/24/2026 5.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,850,500.00 236,805.56 25,087,305.56 0.49 5.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPUW3 9/1/2023 FFCB 9/1/2026 4.750 24,991,750.00 99.97 24,896,250.00 95,659.72 24,991,909.72 0.49 4.762 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPWS0 9/25/2023 FFCB 9/25/2026 5.200 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,982,250.00 18,055.56 25,000,305.56 0.49 5.200 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133ENT26 10/19/2022 FFCB 10/19/2026 5.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,660,750.00 592,569.44 25,253,319.44 0.49 5.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ATN37 11/3/2022 FHLB 11/3/2026 5.375 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,670,750.00 548,697.92 25,219,447.92 0.49 5.375 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3133ENGT1 12/9/2021 FFCB 12/9/2026 1.190 19,998,000.00 99.99 17,852,600.00 73,383.33 17,925,983.33 0.39 1.192 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AQDN0 12/30/2021 FHLB 12/30/2026 1.460 25,000,000.00 100.00 22,321,000.00 91,250.00 22,412,250.00 0.49 1.460 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AQGG2 1/14/2022 FHLB 1/14/2027 1.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 22,292,000.00 79,166.67 22,371,166.67 0.49 1.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ARK59 4/21/2022 FHLB 4/21/2027 3.150 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,373,500.00 347,812.50 23,721,312.50 0.49 3.150 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AS7H6 6/9/2022 FHLB 6/9/2027 3.530 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,572,250.00 272,104.17 23,844,354.17 0.49 3.530 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GXB45 7/14/2022 FHLMC 7/14/2027 4.580 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,206,250.00 241,722.22 24,447,972.22 0.49 4.580 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130ASLA5 7/26/2022 FHLB 7/26/2027 4.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,155,750.00 200,000.00 24,355,750.00 0.49 4.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPVS1 9/15/2023 FFCB 9/15/2027 5.290 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,930,250.00 55,104.17 24,985,354.17 0.49 5.290 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPXB6 9/28/2023 FFCB 9/28/2027 4.625 24,903,250.00 99.61 24,882,750.00 6,423.61 24,889,173.61 0.49 4.732 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GX3B8 9/30/2022 FHLMC 9/30/2027 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,393,750.00 0.00 24,393,750.00 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GY2G6 12/1/2022 FHLMC 12/1/2027 5.800 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,714,250.00 479,305.56 25,193,555.56 0.49 5.800 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EN4L1 12/20/2022 FFCB 12/20/2027 5.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,597,750.00 381,944.44 24,979,694.44 0.49 5.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EN4K3 12/20/2022 FFCB 12/20/2027 5.330 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,523,750.00 370,138.89 24,893,888.89 0.49 5.330 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYBM3 12/30/2022 FHLMC 12/30/2027 4.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 23,982,250.00 268,750.00 24,251,000.00 0.49 4.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AV3H3 2/28/2023 FHLB 2/28/2028 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,396,250.00 111,111.11 24,507,361.11 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

9,273,318.87 3130AV2M3 3/16/2023 FHLB 3/16/2028 6.000 9,273,318.87 100.00 9,191,435.47 21,637.74 9,213,073.22 0.18 6.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AVNA6 4/24/2023 FHLB 4/24/2028 5.500 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,530,750.00 595,833.33 25,126,583.33 0.49 5.500 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPMA0 6/9/2023 FFCB 6/9/2028 4.690 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,132,000.00 361,520.83 24,493,520.83 0.49 4.690 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYUE0 6/30/2023 FHLMC 6/28/2028 6.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,725,000.00 375,000.00 25,100,000.00 0.49 6.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPNZ4 6/30/2023 FFCB 6/30/2028 5.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,336,750.00 312,500.00 24,649,250.00 0.49 5.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYUK6 7/6/2023 FHLMC 7/6/2028 5.920 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,693,750.00 345,333.33 25,039,083.33 0.49 5.920 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3130AWNW6 7/18/2023 FHLB 7/18/2028 4.040 20,000,000.00 100.00 19,458,200.00 161,600.00 19,619,800.00 0.39 4.040 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3134GYW24 7/24/2023 FHLMC 7/24/2028 6.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,722,000.00 275,000.00 24,997,000.00 0.49 6.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
20,000,000.00 3133EMV33 9/27/2023 FFCB 7/26/2028 1.125 16,902,884.00 84.51 16,935,800.00 40,000.00 16,975,800.00 0.39 4.750 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
15,000,000.00 3133EPSK2 8/7/2023 FFCB 8/7/2028 4.250 14,945,250.00 99.64 14,656,800.00 93,854.17 14,750,654.17 0.29 4.332 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

5



San Joaquin County

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
September 30, 2023

Quantity
Security 

Identification
Settlement 

Date Security 
Maturity 

Date Rate Cost Value
Cost 
Price Market Value

Accrued 
Interest

Market Value               
+ Accrued 

Interest
% of 

Portfolio 

YTM 
@ 

Cost Credit Rating 1 Credit Rating 2

25,000,000.00 3133EPSP1 8/8/2023 FFCB 8/8/2028 6.000 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,720,000.00 216,666.67 24,936,666.67 0.49 6.000 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWW89 8/28/2023 FHLB 8/28/2028 4.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,586,000.00 95,555.56 24,681,555.56 0.49 4.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWYF1 8/28/2023 FHLB 8/28/2028 6.300 25,000,000.00 100.00 24,808,000.00 140,000.00 24,948,000.00 0.49 6.300 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
10,000,000.00 3133EPUX1 9/18/2023 FFCB 9/5/2028 5.360 10,000,000.00 100.00 9,960,100.00 37,222.22 9,997,322.22 0.20 5.360 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWTR1 9/8/2023 FHLB 9/8/2028 4.375 24,864,750.00 99.46 24,660,750.00 170,138.89 24,830,888.89 0.49 4.495 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3130AWTR1 9/27/2023 FHLB 9/8/2028 4.375 24,625,250.00 98.50 24,660,750.00 170,138.89 24,830,888.89 0.49 4.716 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
15,000,000.00 3134H1CQ4 9/18/2023 FHLMC 9/18/2028 5.000 14,850,000.00 99.00 14,798,250.00 25,000.00 14,823,250.00 0.29 5.230 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPWK7 9/22/2023 FFCB 9/22/2028 4.500 24,966,750.00 99.87 24,810,500.00 25,000.00 24,835,500.00 0.49 4.530 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+
25,000,000.00 3133EPWK7 9/26/2023 FFCB 9/22/2028 4.500 24,840,750.00 99.36 24,810,500.00 25,000.00 24,835,500.00 0.49 4.644 Moodys-Aaa S&P-AA+

3,339,273,318.87 3,326,994,470.77 3,266,987,385.47 23,118,719.71 3,290,106,105.19 65.51 3.414

TOTAL PORTFOLIO
5,097,649,431.00 5,056,718,441.96 5,004,331,447.60 24,382,561.62 5,028,714,009.23 100.00 3.98

6



San Joaquin County

TRANSACTION SUMMARY
September 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023

Security
Security 
Symbol

YTM @ 
Cost

Trade 
Date

Settlement 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Quantity Principal Cost Price Interest/Dividends Total Broker/Dealer

PURCHASES
FFCB 1.125 7/26/2028 3133EMV33 4.750 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 7/26/2028 20,000,000.00 16,902,884.00 84.51442 38,125.00 16,941,009.00 FHN Financial
FFCB 4.5 9/22/2028 3133EPWK7 4.644 9/25/2023 9/26/2023 9/22/2028 25,000,000.00 24,840,750.00 99.363 12,500.00 24,853,250.00 Piper Sandler & Co.
FFCB 4.5 9/22/2028 3133EPWK7 4.530 9/19/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2028 25,000,000.00 24,966,750.00 99.867 0.00 24,966,750.00 UBS Financial Services
FFCB 4.625 9/28/2027 3133EPXB6 4.732 9/25/2023 9/28/2023 9/28/2027 25,000,000.00 24,903,250.00 99.613 0.00 24,903,250.00 RBC Wealth Management
FFCB 4.75 9/1/2026 3133EPUW3 4.762 8/24/2023 9/1/2023 9/1/2026 25,000,000.00 24,991,750.00 99.967 0.00 24,991,750.00 RBC Wealth Management
FFCB 5.2 9/25/2026-25 3133EPWS0 5.200 9/19/2023 9/25/2023 9/25/2026 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 100 0.00 25,000,000.00 Raymond James
FFCB 5.29 9/15/2027-25 3133EPVS1 5.290 9/6/2023 9/15/2023 9/15/2027 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 100 0.00 25,000,000.00 Wells Fargo
FFCB 5.36 9/5/2028-25 3133EPUX1 5.360 9/15/2023 9/18/2023 9/5/2028 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 100 19,355.56 10,019,355.56 Raymond James
FHLB 4.375 9/8/2028 3130AWTR1 4.716 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 9/8/2028 25,000,000.00 24,625,250.00 98.501 161,024.31 24,786,274.31 UBS Financial Services
FHLB 4.375 9/8/2028 3130AWTR1 4.495 9/6/2023 9/8/2023 9/8/2028 25,000,000.00 24,864,750.00 99.459 103,298.61 24,968,048.61 Union Bank
FHLMC 5 9/18/2028-25 3134H1CQ4 5.230 9/12/2023 9/18/2023 9/18/2028 15,000,000.00 14,850,000.00 99 0.00 14,850,000.00 FHN Financial
IADB 0.875 4/20/2026 4581X0DV7 5.000 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 4/20/2026 25,000,000.00 22,546,917.26 90.187669 95,399.31 22,642,316.57 BMO Capital Markets
IBRD 1.375 4/20/2028 459058JW4 4.500 9/8/2023 9/11/2023 4/20/2028 25,000,000.00 21,780,789.50 87.123158 134,635.42 21,915,424.92 BMO Capital Markets
MUFG Bank 0 6/21/2024 62479LFM2 5.875 9/27/2023 9/28/2023 6/21/2024 25,000,000.00 23,956,104.17 95.824417 0.00 23,956,104.17 Union Bank
Natixis 0 6/21/2024 63873JFM7 5.922 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 6/21/2024 15,000,000.00 14,362,125.00 95.7475 0.00 14,362,125.00 Piper Sandler & Co.
Natixis 0 6/7/2024 63873JF70 5.921 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 6/7/2024 35,000,000.00 33,517,137.50 95.76325 0.00 33,517,137.50 Union Bank
T-Bill 0 3/7/2024 912797GQ4 5.448 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 3/7/2024 25,000,000.00 24,381,388.89 97.525556 0.00 24,381,388.89 Union Bank
T-Note 1.25 6/30/2028 91282CCH2 4.610 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 6/30/2028 25,000,000.00 21,443,359.38 85.773438 73,879.08 21,517,238.46 BMO Capital Markets
Sub Total 420,000,000.00 402,933,205.70 638,217.29 403,571,422.99

Sweep Account - BMO SWEEP3559 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 136,927.13 136,927.13 BMO
Bank Deposit - BMO MM0888 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 62,413.54 62,413.54 BMO
Bank Deposit - Five Star Bank FS8195 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 308,832.18 308,832.18 Five Star Bank
Bank Deposit - State Street Bank SSB5625 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 108,516.55 108,516.55 State Street Bank
Joint Powers Authority Program-CAMP CAMP6088 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 3,254,931.23 3,254,931.23 CAMP
Joint Powers Authority Program-CalTRUST CALTRUST9600 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 N/A 0.00 0.00 89,963.32 89,963.32 CalTrust
FFCB 0.19 9/22/2023-21 3133EMLE0 0.000 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 0.00 0.00 23,750.00 23,750.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FFCB 0.22 9/22/2023 3133EMUF7 0.000 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 0.00 0.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 UBS Financial Services
FFCB 0.37 3/15/2024-22 3133EMTD4 0.000 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 3/15/2024 0.00 0.00 27,750.00 27,750.00 Raymond James
FFCB 0.49 3/10/2025-21 3133EMJP8 0.000 9/10/2023 9/10/2023 3/10/2025 0.00 0.00 61,250.00 61,250.00 Wells Fargo
FFCB 0.7 3/17/2025-22 3133EMTQ5 0.000 9/17/2023 9/17/2023 3/17/2025 0.00 0.00 87,500.00 87,500.00 Union Bank
FFCB 1.7 9/25/2023 3133EKS56 0.000 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 0.00 0.00 212,500.00 212,500.00 Raymond James
FFCB 4.34 9/19/2024-22 3133ENM80 0.000 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 9/19/2024 0.00 0.00 542,500.00 542,500.00 Union Bank
FHLB 0.27 3/28/2024-21 3130AKKF2 0.000 9/28/2023 9/28/2023 3/28/2024 0.00 0.00 33,750.00 33,750.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLB 0.37 3/8/2024-21 3130AK3R5 0.000 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 3/8/2024 0.00 0.00 46,250.00 46,250.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 0.47 5/30/2024-21 3130ALPA6 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 5/30/2024 0.00 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLB 0.51 9/30/2024-21 3130ALTH7 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2024 0.00 0.00 63,750.00 63,750.00 Piper Sandler
FHLB 0.6 11/29/2024-21 3130ALRM8 0.000 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 11/29/2024 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 0.65 9/29/2023-22 3130AQAL7 0.000 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 0.00 0.00 81,250.00 81,250.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 0.75 6/30/2025-21 3130ALU93 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 6/30/2025 0.00 0.00 93,750.00 93,750.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 1.1 9/30/2024-22 3130AQBU6 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2024 0.00 0.00 137,500.00 137,500.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLB 1.33 9/15/2025-22 3130AQBW2 0.000 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 9/15/2025 0.00 0.00 166,250.00 166,250.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLB 3.375 9/8/2023 313383YJ4 0.000 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 0.00 0.00 421,875.00 421,875.00 Raymond James
FHLB 3.75 9/27/2023-22 3130AT6H5 0.000 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 0.00 0.00 468,750.00 468,750.00 Stifel
FHLB 4.75 3/8/2024 3130ATUQ8 0.000 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 3/8/2024 0.00 0.00 593,750.00 593,750.00 FHN Financial
FHLB 5 1/30/2024-23 3130AVK27 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 1/30/2024 0.00 0.00 625,000.00 625,000.00 Multi-Bank Securities
FHLB 5.35 2/7/2024-23 3130AV7G1 0.000 9/7/2023 9/7/2023 2/7/2024 0.00 0.00 668,750.00 668,750.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 6 3/16/2028-23 3130AV2M3 0.000 9/16/2023 9/16/2023 3/16/2028 0.00 0.00 278,199.57 278,199.57 UBS Financial Services
FHLMC 0.22 9/29/2023-21 3134GXJH8 0.000 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 0.00 0.00 13,750.00 13,750.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLMC 0.25 9/15/2023-21 3134GXGA6 0.000 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 0.00 0.00 15,625.00 15,625.00 UBS Financial Services
FHLMC 0.4 6/10/2024-21 3134GWJ64 0.000 9/10/2023 9/10/2023 6/10/2024 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLMC 4 9/13/2024-22 3134GXT61 0.000 9/13/2023 9/13/2023 9/13/2024 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLMC 5 9/30/2024-23 3134GYAQ5 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2024 0.00 0.00 625,000.00 625,000.00 Stifel
FHLMC 5 9/30/2027-22 3134GX3B8 0.000 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2027 0.00 0.00 625,000.00 625,000.00 Raymond James
FHLMC 5.75 3/20/2026-23 3134GYLK6 0.000 9/20/2023 9/20/2023 3/20/2026 0.00 0.00 718,750.00 718,750.00 FHN Financial
Sub Total 0.00 0.00 11,293,283.52 11,293,283.52

FFCB 0.19 9/22/2023-21 3133EMLE0 0.000 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 BNP Paribas Securities

INTEREST

MATURED

7



San Joaquin County

TRANSACTION SUMMARY
September 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023

FFCB 0.22 9/22/2023 3133EMUF7 0.000 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 UBS Financial Services
FFCB 1.7 9/25/2023 3133EKS56 0.000 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 9/25/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Raymond James
FHLB 0 9/12/2023 313384LQ0 0.000 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 RBC Wealth Management
FHLB 0 9/19/2023 313384LX5 0.000 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Union Bank
FHLB 0 9/19/2023 313384LX5 0.000 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 9/19/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Piper Sandler & Co.
FHLB 0 9/5/2023 313384LH0-1 0.000 9/5/2023 9/5/2023 9/5/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Wells Fargo
FHLB 0.65 9/29/2023-22 3130AQAL7 0.000 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Multi-Bank Securities
FHLB 3.375 9/8/2023 313383YJ4 0.000 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Raymond James
FHLB 3.75 9/27/2023-22 3130AT6H5 0.000 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 9/27/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 Stifel
FHLMC 0.22 9/29/2023-21 3134GXJH8 0.000 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 9/29/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 BNP Paribas Securities
FHLMC 0.25 9/15/2023-21 3134GXGA6 0.000 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 9/15/2023 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0 0.00 25,000,000.00 UBS Financial Services
Johnson & Johnson 0 9/28/2023 47816GWU9 0.000 9/28/2023 9/28/2023 9/28/2023 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 0 0.00 20,000,000.00 Raymond James
MetLife 0 9/12/2023 59157UWC0 0.000 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 0 0.00 10,000,000.00 Piper Sandler & Co.
Natixis 0 9/22/2023 63873KWN3 0.000 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 9/22/2023 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0 0.00 15,000,000.00 Union Bank
Natixis 0 9/8/2023 63873KW86 0.000 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 9/8/2023 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 0 0.00 35,000,000.00 Union Bank
Sub Total 380,000,000.00 380,000,000.00 0.00 380,000,000.00

8



 

 

GLOSSARY 
 
Accrued Interest: The amount of 
interest that is earned but unpaid (not 
yet received) since the last interest 
payment date. 
 
Broker: A broker brings buyers and 
sellers together for a transaction for 
which the broker receives a 
commission.   
 
Certificate of Deposit (CD): A time 
deposit with a specific maturity 
evidenced by a certificate.   
 
Commercial Paper (CP): The short-
term unsecured debt of corporations. 
 
Credit Rating: Designations assigned 
by credit rating agencies to rate a 
debtor’s ability to pay back debt and 
likelihood of default. 
 
Dealer: A dealer, as opposed to a 
broker, acts as a principal in security 
transactions buying and selling 
securities for his own account. 
 
Federal Agency Securities: Debt 
Securities issued by U.S. Government 
Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) and 
federally related institutions.  These 
government agencies include:  Federal 
Home Loan Banks (FHLB); Federal 
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC, 
or “Freddie Mac”); Federal National 
Mortgage Association (FNMA or 
“Fannie Mae”); Federal Farm Credit 
Banks (FFCB); Farmer Mac. 
 
Investment Policy: A concise and 
clear statement of the objectives and 
parameters formulated by an investor or 
investment manager for a portfolio of 
investment securities. 
 
Joint Powers of Authority (JPA): An 
entity that allows two or more public 
authorities to jointly exercise any 
power common to all of them that 
permit public agencies to provide 
services more efficiently and in a cost -
effective manner. 
 
Liquidity: The speed and ease with 
which an asset can be converted to cash 
without substantial loss of value. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF): The LAIF is an investment 
alternative for California’s local 

government and special districts 
authorized under Sections 16429, 1, 2 
and 3 of the California Government 
Code.   
 
Market Value: The price at which a 
security can be traded. 
 
Maturity: The final date upon which 
the principal or stated value of a 
security becomes due and payable. 
 
Medium Term Notes (MTN): Debt 
securities issued by a corporation or 
depository institution with a maturity 
ranging from nine months to five years.  
The term “medium-term notes” refers 
to the time it takes for an obligation to 
mature and includes other corporate 
debt securities originally issued for 
maturities longer than five years, but 
which have now fallen with the five 
year maturity range.  MTNs issued by 
banks are also called “bank notes.” 
 
Money Market: The market in which 
short-term debt instruments (Treasury 
Bills, discount notes, commercial 
paper, and banker’s acceptances) are 
issued and traded. 
 
Portfolio: A collection of securities 
held by an investor. 
 
Price: The amount of monetary 
consideration required by a willing 
seller and a willing buyer to sell an 
investment on a particular date. 
 
Principal: The face value or par value 
of an investment. 
 
Rate of Return: The yield obtainable 
on a security based on its purchase price 
or its current market price.  This may be 
the amortized yield to maturity on the 
bond or the current income return. 
 
Risk: The uncertainty of maintaining 
the principal or interest associated with 
an investment due to a variety of 
factors. 
 
Safety: In the context of investing 
public funds, safety relates to the 
preservation of principal of an 
investment in an investment portfolio; 
local agencies address the concerns of 
safety by controlling exposure to risks. 

Supranationals: U.S. dollar 
denominated senior unsecured 
unsubordinated obligations issued or 
unconditionally guaranteed by the 
International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development (IBRD), 
International Finance Corporation 
(IFC), or Inter-American Development 
Bank (IADB). 
 
Treasury Bills: Non-interest-bearing 
discount securities with maturities 
under one year issued by the U.S. 
Treasury to finance the national debt. 
 
Treasury Bonds: Interest-bearing 
obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury 
with maturities that range from 10 to 30 
years from date of issue. 
 
Treasury Notes: Interest-bearing 
obligations of the U.S. Treasury with 
maturities ranging from two to 10 years 
from date of issue. 
 
U.S. Treasury Securities: Securities 
issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed 
by the full faith and credit of the United 
States.  Treasuries are considered to 
have no credit risk and are the 
benchmark for interest rates on all other 
securities in the U.S. and overseas.  The 
U.S. Treasury issues both discounted 
securities and fixed coupon notes and 
bonds. 
 
Weighted Average Maturity 
(WAM): The average maturity of all 
the securities that comprise a portfolio 
that is typically expressed in days or 
years. 
 
Yield: The annual rate of return on a 
debt investment computed as though 
held to maturity expressed in 
percentages. 
 
For previous Investment Reports and 
the County’s Investment Policy, please 
visit the Treasurer-Tax Collector's 
Treasury website at: 
sjgov.org/department/ttc/treasury  
 

 

9



 

1 
 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20232024 Investment 

Policy 

 

Submitted by  

Phonxay Keokham, CPA 

 Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on  

November 29, 202228, 2023 

 



 

 
 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

1.0 INVESTMENT POLICY .................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 OBJECTIVE ........................................................................................................................................ 1 

3.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ...................................................................................................... 1 

4.0 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS ............................................................................................................... 2 

5.0 CONSTRAINTS SET BY GOVERNMENT CODE ............................................................................ 2 

6.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS........................................................................................................ 2 

7.0 DIVERSIFICATION ........................................................................................................................... 5 

8.0 MATURITY STRUCTURE ................................................................................................................ 5 

9.0 DEALER APPROVAL ........................................................................................................................ 6 

10.0 COMPETITIVE BIDDING ............................................................................................................... 6 

11.0 SWAPS AND TRADES .................................................................................................................... 6 

12.0 LOSSES ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

13.0 SAFEKEEPING................................................................................................................................. 6 

14.0 CONFIRMATION ............................................................................................................................. 7 

15.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS .................................................................................................................. 7 

16.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS...................................................................................................... 7 

17.0 CREDIT FOR INTEREST EARNINGS ............................................................................................ 7 

18.0 DIRECTED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 7 

19.0 OUTSIDE AGENCIES ...................................................................................................................... 8 

20.0 WITHDRAWALS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

21.0 REPORTING ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

22.0 COUNTY TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ...................................................................... 8 

23.0 INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................................................................ 9 

24.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ...................................................................................... 9 

25.0 BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN .................................................................................................. 10 

GLOSSARY ............................................................................................................................................ 12 

 

 



 

1 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

1.0 INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

The Investment Policy establishes the criteria for the prudent investment of pool participants’ surplus 

treasury funds and outlines the policies for maximizing the efficiency of the San Joaquin County 

(County) cash management system. In addition, the Investment Policy governs the deposit, 

safekeeping, and investment of all funds under the control of the County Treasurer-Tax Collector 

(Treasurer), as well as all related transactions and investment activities in accordance with California 

State Law. It does not apply to bond funds or other affiliated public agency assets that reside outside 

of the County’s Investment Pool. 

 

The Investment Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Treasurer with the Treasury Oversight 

Committee. (Committee). Any modifications made thereto must be approved by the County Board of 

Supervisors (Board) and adopted by resolution. No person may engage in an investment transaction 

except as provided under the terms of the Investment Policy.  The Treasurer shall establish written 

Investment Policy procedures.  

 

2.0 OBJECTIVE  

 

The objective of the Investment Policy is to enhanceprotect the economic statussurplus funds of all 

Investment Pool participants while protectingproviding for their surplus treasury fundscash flow 

requirements and enhancing their economic status. The County operates its investment program under 

the “Prudent Investor Standard” set forth by Government Code Section 53600.3. This affords the 

CountyTreasurer a broad spectrum of investment opportunities provided that the investment is 

deemed prudent and is allowable under current legislation of the State of California State Law.   

 

The criteria and priority for selecting investments are as follows: 

 

(a) Safety.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the County’s investment program.  The 

safety and risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal and/or 

interest.  Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 

capital in the Investment Pool.   

 

(b) Liquidity.  Liquidity refers to the ability to access cash at any time with minimal risk of losing 

some portion of principal or interest.  The Investment Pool will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the County to meet all anticipated operating requirements.  Liquidity is an important 

investment quality considering an unanticipated need for funds may arise. 

 

(c) Yield.  Yield is the potential dollar earnings that an investment can provide and is also referred 

to as the rate of return.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the 

safety and liquidity objectives describedreferenced above.   

 

3.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

 

The County Board of Supervisors, as permitted under Government Code Section 53607, delegates 

the responsibility to invest or reinvest the funds of the County or to sell or exchange securities so 

purchased to the Treasurer who shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall 



 

2 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials and their procedures 

in the absence of the Treasurer.  

4.0 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS  

 

The following criteria represents the general framework withinby which the County’s Treasury 

investment program shall be conducted: 

 

(a) The laws of the State of California and the Prudent Investor Standard shall be the primary 

standards by which all County Treasury investments are transacted. 

 

(b)(a) Surplus treasury fund management and investment transactions are the responsibility of the 

Treasurer. 

 

(c) The Treasurer strives to maintain the level of investment of all funds as near 100 percent as 

possible through daily projections and cash flow forecasting. 

  

(d)(b) The basic premise underlying the Investment Policy is to ensure that the pooled funds are 

always safe and readily available when needed..  

 

(e)(c) Surplus treasury funds are allthe funds which are not required to meet the bank’s 

demandsdemand on the Treasury to redeem warrants or cover other County disbursement 

obligations on any given day.   

 

(d) Surplus treasury fund management and investment transactions are the responsibility of the 

Treasurer. 

 

(e) The Treasurer strives to invest all surplus funds in the Investment Pool by anticipating pool 

participant activities and needs through daily projections and cash flow forecasting. 

 

5.0 CONSTRAINTS SET BY GOVERNMENT CODE 

 

Government Code Sections 53601 and 53635 impose restrictions on the investments of government 

entities.  All such restrictions are to be adhered to in their entirety.  In addition, the Treasurer may 

impose further restrictions toon investments if the Treasurer deems such action appropriate. The 

following section lists the only authorized investments of the County.   

 

6.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

 

The County’sTreasurer’s authorization to invest is limited to the securities categorized below.  All 

securities must be U.S. dollar denominated.  The restrictions specified in Government Code Sections 

53601 and 53635 apply unless otherwise stated.  Authorized investments are as follows: 

 

(a) United StatesU.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds (Maximum of 100%) 

 

United StatesU.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds for which the full faith and credit of the 

United StatesU.S. are pledged for the payment of principal and interest.  Zero Coupon issues 



 

3 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

of these types of investments are authorized.  There is no percentage limit on the total dollar 

amount that may be invested in this category. 

 

(b) State Obligations and California Local Agency Bonds (Maximum of 100%)  

 

Registered Treasury Notes, Bonds, notes, warrants of the State or Warrants as defined in 

Government Code Section 53601.department, board, agency, or authority of the State.  Bonds, 

notes, warrants of a local agency within the State or department, board, agency, or authority 

of a local agency within the State.  There is no percentage limit on the total dollar amount that 

may be invested in this category.  

 

(c) Obligations issued by A Federal Agency or a U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) 

(Maximum of 100%) 

 

Federal Agency or GSE obligation, participations, or other instruments, including those 

issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United 

StatesU.S. government are authorized.  There is no percentage limit on the total dollar 

amount that may be invested in this category. 

 

(d) Banker’s Acceptances (Maximum of 40%)  

 

Bills of Exchange or Time Drafts (referred to as Banker’s Acceptances). Banker’s 

Acceptances may not exceed 40 percent of the Investment Pool, and no more than 30 percent 

may be invested in the Banker’s Acceptances of one commercial bank.  The limit for each 

issuer may be specified in the Treasurer's “Approved Banker’s Acceptance Issues”. 

 

(e) Commercial Paper (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Commercial Paper is an unsecured, short-term debt instrument issued by a corporation. 

Commercial Paper must have the highest categories of a nationally recognized statistical 

rating organization (NRSRO). The maximum maturity is 270 days.  The limit for each issuer 

is specified in the Treasurer’s “Commercial Paper Approved List”.  Commercial Paper may 

not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. 

 

(f) Time Deposits (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Certificates of Deposits issued by nationally or state-chartered bank, savings association, 

federal association, or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank.  The bank must have a branch 

or office in the County.  The bank must have a rating in the highest or second highest 

categories of an NRSRO. The limit for each issuer is specified in the Treasurer’s “Approved 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit List.”  The collateralization level will be 110 percent of 

market value for Certificate of Deposits.  The maximum maturity is one year.  Certificate of 

Deposits may not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. 

 

(g) Repurchase Agreements (Maximum of 100%) 

 



 

4 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Term repurchase agreements may be collateralized by either U.S. Treasury securities or by 

any U.S. Federal Agency security. 

 

 Regardless of maturity, repurchase agreements must be collateralized at 102 percent (market 

value plus accrued interest).  Repurchase agreements shall only be made with dealers 

withwhose assets in excess ofexceed $500 million and having either the highest commercial 

paper rating, of A or higher rating for the issuer’s debt, if any, as provided by a NRSRO.  

There is no percentage limit on the total dollar amount that may be invested in this category. 

 

 All Repurchase Agreements with brokers/dealers will be done through a “Tri-Party Custodian 

Agreement” that has been approved, in writing, by the Treasurer. 

 

 All Repurchase Agreements with commercial banks will be governed by a Public Securities 

Association (PSA) agreement that has been approved, in writing, by the Treasurer.  
 

(h) Medium Term Notes (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Corporate Debentures (Medium Term Notes) that have a rating in the highest or second 

highest categories of a NRSRO.  Medium Term Notes must be issued by corporations 

organized and operating within the United StatesU.S.  The maximum maturity of such issues 

is three years.  Floaters of the above issues are authorized as long asif the maximum maturity 

does not exceed three years.  Medium Term Notes may not exceed 30 percent of the 

Investment Pool. 

 

(i) Mutual Funds (Maximum of 20%) 

 

Mutual Funds, as defined in Government Code Section 53601 that, consist only of those 

investments authorized by the Investment Policy.  Mutual Funds may not exceed 20 percent 

of the Investment Pool. A thorough investigation of the fund is required prior to investing 

and due diligence must be conducted on an annual basis.  

 

(j) Specific Securities (Maximum per Approval) 

 

Specific securities as specified in the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement for 

monies pledged to the payment or security of bonds or other indebtedness as governed by 

Government Code Section 53601(m) must receive written approval from the Treasurer. 

 

(k) Bank Deposits (Maximum of 10%) 

 

Bank Deposits are interest-bearing active deposits in a state or national bank, savings 

association, or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally insured 

industrial loan company. These deposits must be properly collateralized at 110 percent in 

accordance with Government Code Section 53652. Deposits with any one depository may not 

exceed 10 percent of the Investment Pool.  

 

(l) Joint Powers Authority Programs (Maximum of 30%) 



 

5 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

Managed investment pools pursuant to Government Code Section 53601(p) for which 

shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to 

Government Code Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations authorized 

in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal proportional 

interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. Joint 

Powers Authority Programs may not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. To be 

eligible under this section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have retained 

an investment adviser that meets all of the following criteria:  

  

(1)  The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission.  

(2)  The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities and 

obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive.  

(3)  The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred$500 million 

dollars ($500,000,000)..      

 

(m) Supranationals (Maximum of 10%) 

 

U.S. Dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations which are rated in a 

rating category of “AA” or its equivalent by one NRSRO at time of purchase, issued or 

unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 

International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank, and eligible for 

purchase and sale within the U.S.  Supranationals may not exceed 10 percent of the Investment 

Pool. 

 

(n) Local Agency Investment Fund 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) of the State of California is an investment alternative 

created pursuant to Government Code Section 16429.1 for California’s local governments 

and special districts.  LAIF purchases securities under the authority of Government Code 

Section 16430 and 16480.4.   The Treasurer may invest up to the maximum amount permitted 

by LAIF.   

 

7.0 DIVERSIFICATION 

 
It is the policy of the Treasurer to diversify the pooled funds. Investments are diversified to 

minimize the risk of loss of principal and interest resulting infrom an overconcentration of assets 

in a specific maturity, issuer, or classtype of security. Diversification strategies shall be established 

by the Treasurer and periodically reviewed.  
 

8.0 MATURITY STRUCTURE 

 

To the extent possible, investments shall be made to match anticipated cash flow requirements. A 

minimum of 25 percent of the entire Investment Pool shall mature within 60 days to provide 

sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements. If for any reason the Investment Pool is not in 



 

6 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

compliance with the minimum maturity percentage, all new investments will be restricted to a 

maturity of 60 days or less until compliance is restored. No investment shall be made in any security 

with a maturity greater than five years unless it is approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

 

Annually, the Treasurer must give written approval for authorized staff to purchase securities with a 

maturity of one year or longer. 

 

9.0 DEALER APPROVAL    

 

All financial institutions used for the placement of investments must be approved by the Treasurer in 

writing.  The creditworthiness of all financial institutions will be reviewed by the Treasurer. The 

Treasurer will maintain a list of approved financial institutions authorized to provide investment 

services to the County. 

 

The Treasurer will not approve any broker, brokerage, dealer, or securities firm that has, within the 

past two years, made a political contribution in an amount exceeding the limitations contained in Rule 

G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, to the Treasurer, any member of the Board of 

Supervisors, or any candidate for these offices. 

 

All brokers are provided with the updated Investment Policy on an annual basis. 

 

10.0 COMPETITIVE BIDDING 

 

Bids for any investment shall be taken from a minimum of two banks or broker/dealers.  Awards will 

be made to the highest offer, giving consideration to safety, liquidity, a balanced investment pool, and 

diversification.  If two bids for a similar investment security are unavailable, then the second bid may 

be for another investment security with a similar maturity.  

     

11.0 SWAPS AND TRADES 

 

Securities may be swapped and traded for other eligible securities after calculating the gain between 

the buy and sell candidates in the transaction and approval by the Treasurer. 

 

12.0 LOSSES 

 

Generally, losses are acceptable on a sale before maturity and may be taken if reinvested proceeds 

will prevent the potential of a greater loss, provide increased liquidity, or earn a higher yield.  

Approval by the Treasurer is required.  

 

13.0 SAFEKEEPING 

 

Securities purchased from broker/dealers shall be held in third party safekeeping by the trust 

department of the County’s bank or other designated third -party custodian and in the County’s name. 

The third -party custodian shall be required to issue a safekeeping statement listing specific 

instrument, rate, maturity, and other pertinent information.  No securities will be held by the 

broker/dealer from whom they were purchased. 



 

7 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

Safekeeping of Repurchase Agreements is stipulated in the section titled “Authorized Investments”..” 

 

14.0 CONFIRMATION 

 

All investment confirmations are to be reviewed for conformity with the original transaction.  

Discrepancies are to be reported to the Treasurer. 

 

15.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 

The Treasurer shall establish internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that the investment 

objectives are met and to ensure that the assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The 

Treasurer shall also be responsible for ensuring that all investment transactions comply with the 

Investment Policy and Government Codes.California State Law.  

 

The Treasurer shall establish a process for daily, monthly, quarterly, and annual reviews and the 

monitoring of investment program activity. Daily, the Treasurer or authorized Treasury personnel 

shall review the investment activity, as well as corresponding custodial and commercial bank 

balances and positions for compliance with the Investment Policy and guidelines. The County 

Auditor-Controller’s Office or the contracted external auditor shall conduct an annual audit of the 

investment program’s activities. 

 

16.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 

The investment portfolioInvestment Pool shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate 

of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles commensurate with investment risk 

constraints and cash flow needs.  

The Treasurer’s investment strategy is both passive and active. Given this strategy, the basis used 

by the Treasurer to determine whether market yields are being achieved shall be to identify a 

comparable benchmark to the investment duration. (i.e. 90-day U.S. Treasury Bill, six-month U.S. 

Treasury Bill, Average FedFederal Funds Rate). Benchmarks may be modified over time based on 

changes in market conditions or cash flow requirements. 
 

17.0 CREDIT FOR INTEREST EARNINGS 

 

Interest earnings from the Investment Pool shall be credited to participating entities each quarter.  The 

credit is computed based on the average daily cash balance of funds on deposit during the quarter in 

the County Treasury. 

 

In accordance with Government Code Section 27013, authorized costs of investing, depositing, 

banking, auditing, reporting or otherwise handling or managing funds will be deducted from the total 

interest earnings prior to the interest earnings apportionment. 

 

18.0 DIRECTED INVESTMENTS 

 



 

8 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

The Treasurer may allow special directed investments for Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note 

(TRANs) proceeds or other special purposes.  The Treasurer will work with the entity to make a single 

directed investment.  For proceeds between $10 million and $50 million, that investment will be in a 

U.S. Treasury Bill.  For proceeds in excess of $50 million, the investment can be in either a U.S. 

Treasury Bill or a U.S. Treasury Note.  Upon the maturity of the investment, all funds will be 

deposited into the Investment Pool.  Any funds from the TRANs sale, not included in the investment, 

will be placed in the Investment Pool.  The charge for the investment will be $5,000, which is 

estimated to cover the actual expenses of the offices of the Treasurer and the County Auditor-

Controller. These expenses may include paying agent, safekeeping, establishing of entity funds, 

tracking, and recording the investment.  The Treasurer may negotiate a different charge if it is cost 

justified and appropriate.  Directed investments will be separate from the Investment Pool. 

 

19.0 OUTSIDE AGENCIES 

 

Local agencies not required to deposit funds with the County may place funds in the Investment Pool 

with the approval of the Treasurer.  All agencies must comply with this Investment Policy.  It is 

anticipated that most funds will be withdrawn from the Investment Pool by a warrant.  Wire transfers 

must be arranged with the Treasurer. 

 

20.0 WITHDRAWALS 

 

The Treasurer requires 24-hour notice on withdrawals of $1 million to $10 million, a seven-day notice 

on withdrawals between $10 million and $25 million, and a 30-day notice for amounts exceeding $25 

million. The Treasurer also reserves the right to work with any agency on the timing of a withdrawal 

exceeding $10 million if that withdrawal might affect the stability or predictability of cash flow in the 

County Treasury.  The Treasurer may refuse any withdrawal above $25 million which may negatively 

impact the stability and predictability of cash flow in the County Treasury.  The Treasurer may reduce 

or waive the required notice.    

 

21.0 REPORTING 

 

The Treasurer shall provide a monthly report to the County Board of Supervisors, County 

Administrator, County Auditor-Controller, and the County Treasury Oversight Committee itemizing 

all Treasury investments by investment type, institution, date of maturity, amount of investment, rate 

of interest, and current market value.  Securities will be valued based on information from either the 

trustee, broker, the Wall Street Journal, or other sources approved by the Treasurer.  The market value 

for bank deposits, Certificates of Deposit, Repurchase Agreements of less than 30 days, LAIF, and 

Joint Powers Authority Programs, will be at cost.  The report will include the weighted average 

maturity of the investments in the Treasury Pool, and a statement denoting the ability of the local 

agency to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

 

22.0 COUNTY TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 

The County Treasury Oversight Committee (Committee) will review and monitor the Investment 

Policy on an annual basis. The Committee shall require an annual audit to be conducted to determine 

the County Treasury’s compliance with the law and the Investment Policy. 



 

9 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

The Committee shall not direct individual investment decisions, select individual investment advisors, 

brokers, dealers, or impinge on the day-to-day operations of the County Treasury. 

 

A member may not be employed by an entity that has contributed to the campaign of a candidate for 

the office of local Treasurer or contributed to the campaign of a candidate to be a member of a 

legislative body of any local agency that has deposited funds in the County Treasury, in the previous 

three years or during the period that the employee is a member of the Committee (Government Code 

Section 27132.1). 

 

A member may not directly or indirectly raise money for a candidate for local Treasurer or a member 

of the governing board of any local agency that has deposited funds in the County Treasury while a 

member of the Committee (Government Code Section 27132.2).  

 

A member may not secure employment with, or be employed by, bond underwriters, bond counsel, 

security brokerages or dealers, or financial services firms, with whom the Treasurer is doing business 

during the period that the person is a member of the Committee or for one year after leaving the 

Committee (Government Code Section 27132.3). 

 

Committee meetings shall be open to the public and subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 

23.0 INDEMNIFICATION 

 

The standard of care to be used by the County’s officers or employees in all investment transactions 

shall be the Prudent Investor Standard (Government Code Section 53600.3), which is expanded as 

follows: 

 

When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing 

public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 

circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to the general economic 

conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a 

like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of funds of a  

like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity 

needs of the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual 

investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized 

by law.  

 

The above criteria are established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied 

in the context of managing the Investment Pool.  Investment officers acting in accordance with the 

Investment Policy shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk 

or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion, 

and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 

24.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 



 

10 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

No officer, employee, or member of the Committee may directly or indirectly accept or solicit from 

any person, corporation, or group having a business relationship with the Treasurer or Treasury-

related functions, any rebate, kickback, or anything of an economic value as a gift, gratuity, or 

honoraria. 

 

No officer or employee of the Treasurer shall, outside of working hours, engage in any profession, 

trade, business, or occupation, which is incompatible or involves a conflict of interest with his/her 

duties as a County officer or employee. 

 

Investment officials shall refrain from personal business activity that may conflict with proper 

execution and management of the Investment Policy and the investment program or which could 

impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Investment officials must provide public disclosure 

required under Government Code Section 87203, et seq. 

 

The Treasurer and designated employees must annually file a Form 700 (Statement of Economic 

Interest) in accordance with the County’s Conflict-of-Interest Code. 

 

25.0 BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN 

 

In the event the Treasurer or authorized staff is unable to conduct normal business operations, the 

Treasurer has an agreement with the custody bank for a daily sweep of surplus funds into an 

interest-bearing account as well as the ability to transfer additional funds to money market and 

liquid accounts until normal operations are restored. Treasurer-imposed restrictions pertaining to 

investment type, investment amount, and investment percentages, as stated in the Investment Policy, 

will be temporarily suspended to allow for continued operations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

11 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

12 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

GLOSSARY 

 

Accrued Interest: The amount of interest that is earned but unpaid (not yet received) since the 

last interest payment date. 

 

Banker’s Acceptance (BA): A highly-liquid draft or bill of exchange accepted by a bank or trust 

company.  The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer. 

 

Broker: A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a transaction for which the broker receives 

a commission.   

 

Certificate of Deposit (CD): A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.  

Large denomination CDs may be marketable. 

 

Collateral: Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or repurchase 

agreement.  Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of public monies. 

 

Commercial Paper (CP): The short-term unsecured debt of corporations. 

 

Credit Risk: The risk that principal and/or interest on an investment will not be paid in a timely 

manner due to changes in the condition of the issuer. 

 

Custodian: A bank or other financial institution that keeps custody of stock certificates and other 

assets. 

 

Dealer: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in security transactions buying and  

selling securities for his own account. 

 

Discount Note:  Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a discount and 

redeemed at maturity for full face value. 

 

Diversification: Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent 

returns to avoid excessive exposure to any one source of risk. 

 

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE):  A type of financial services corporation created by 

the Federal Government to facilitate borrowing in specific sectors.  GSE bonds carry the implicit 

backing of the Federal Government. 

 

Interest: The amount earned while owning a debt security and generally calculated as a percentage 

of the principal amount. 

 

Internal Controls: An internal control structureRules and procedures designed to ensure the 

integrity of financial and accounting information, accountability, and that the assets of the entity 

are protected from loss, theft, or misuse.  The internal control structure is designed to provide 

reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.  

 



 

13 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Investment Policy: A concise and clear statement of the objectives and parameters formulated by 

an investor or investment manager for a portfolio of investment securities. 

 

Investment Pool: A portfolio with funds combined from more than one entity.   

 

Joint Powers Agreements (JPA): Entities created under Government Code Section 6509.7 that 

allow two or more public agencies to jointly exercise common powers and issue shares of 

beneficial interest to the participating public agencies and may invest in securities and obligations 

as described by subdivision (p) of Government Code Section 53601. 

 

Liquidity: The speed and ease with which an asset can be converted to cash without substantial 

loss of value. 

 

Local Agency: County, city, city & county, including a chartered city or county, school district, 

community college district, public district, county board of education, county superintendent of 

schools, or any public or municipal corporation. 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF): The LAIF is an investment alternative for California’s 

local government and special districts authorized under Government Code Sections 16429.1.  The 

LAIF is managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, with oversight by the Local Agency Investment 

Advisory Board.  All securities in LAIF are purchased under the authority of Government Code 

Sections 16430 and 16480.4.  The State Treasurer’s Office receives all securities on a delivery 

versus payment basis using a third -party custodian.  All securities are purchased at market, with 

market valuation conducted monthly. 

 

Market Value: The price at which a security can be traded. 

 

Master Repurchase Agreement: A written contract covering all future transactions between the 

parties to repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements that establishes each party’s rights in the 

transactions.  A master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right of the buyer-

lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event of default by the seller-borrower. 

 

Maturity: The final date upon which the principal or stated value of a security becomes due and 

payable. 

 

Medium Term Notes (MTN): Debt securities issued by a corporation or depository institution 

with a maturity ranging from nine months to five years.  The term “medium-term notes” refers to 

the time it takes for an obligation to mature and includes other corporate debt securities originally 

issued for maturities longer than five years, but which have now fallen within the five year maturity 

range.  MTNs issued by banks are also called “bank notes.” 

 

Money Market: The market in which short-term debt instruments (Treasury Bills, discount notes, 

commercial paper, and banker’s acceptances) are issued and traded. 

 

Mutual Funds: An investment company that pools money and can invest in a variety of securities, 

including fixed-income securities and money market instruments. 



 

14 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO): Firms that review the 

creditworthiness of the issuers of debt securities, and express their opinion in the form of letter 

ratings (e.g. AAA, AA, A, BBB, etc.)  The primary rating agencies include Standard & Poor’s 

Corporation, Moody’s Investor Services, Inc., and Fitch Investors Service, Duff & Phelps 

Investment Service, Thompson BankWatch, and International Bank Credit Analyst. 

 

Par:  The amount of principal that must be paid at maturity.  Also referred to as the face amount 

of a bond. 

 

Portfolio: A collection of securities held by an investor. 

 

Price: The amount of monetary consideration required by a willing seller and a willing buyer to 

sell an investment on a particular date. 

 

Prudent Investor Standard: A standard of responsibility which applies to fiduciaries.  In 

California, the rule is stated as “Investments shall be managed with the care, skill, prudence and 

diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person, acting in a like capacity 

and familiar with such matters, would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with 

like aims to accomplish similar purposes.” 

 

Principal: The face value or par value of an investment. 

 

Rate of Return: The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market 

price.  This may be the amortized yield to maturity on the bond or the current income return. 

 

Rating: Various alphabetical and numerical designations used by institutional investors, Wall 

Street underwriters, and commercial rating companies use to give relative indications of bond and 

note creditworthiness.   

 

Repurchase Agreement (RP or REPO): The purchase of securities, on a temporary basis, with 

the seller’s simultaneous agreement to repurchase the securities at a later date at a specified price 

that includes interest for the buyer’s holding period.  In essence, this is a collateralized investment 

whereby the security “buyer” lends the “seller” money for the period of the agreement. 

 

Risk: The uncertainty of maintaining the principal or interest associated with an investment due 

to a variety of factors. 

 

Rule G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board: Federal regulations to sever any 

connection between the making of political contributions and the awarding of municipal securities 

business. 

 

Safekeeping: A service to bank customers whereby securities are held for protection by the bank 

in the customer’s name. 

 



 

15 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Safety: In the context of investing public funds, safety relates to the preservation of principal of 

an investment in an investment portfolio; local agencies address the concerns of safety by 

controlling exposure to risks. 

 

Supranational:  An entity that is formed by two or more central governments with the purpose of 

promoting economic development for the member countries.  Examples include the International 

Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, and the Inter-

American Development Bank. 

 

Swap: A swap is any financial transaction that involves the simultaneous purchase of a security 

and the sale of another for the purpose of enhancing an investor’s portfolio.  Swap transactions of 

interest to California public investors include portfolio swaps and interest rate swaps. 

 

Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs): Notes issued in anticipation of receiving tax 

proceeds or other revenues at a future date. 

 

Treasury Bills: Non-interest-bearing discount securities with maturities under one year issued by 

the U.S. Treasury to finance the national debt. 

 

Treasury Notes: Interest-bearing obligations of the U.S. Treasury with maturities ranging from 

two to 10 years from date of issue. 

 

Treasury Bonds: Interest-bearing obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury with maturities that 

range from 10 to 30 years from date of issue. 

 

Treasury Notes: Interest-bearing obligations of the U.S. Treasury with maturities ranging from 

two to 10 years from date of issue. 

 

U.S. Government Agency Securities: Government sponsored obligations, participation, or other 

instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal 

agencies or United StatesU.S. government-sponsored enterprises. 

 

U.S. Treasury Securities: Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith and 

credit of the United StatesU.S.  Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the 

benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the U.S. and overseas.  The U.S. Treasury 

issues both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds. 

 

Weighted Average Maturity (WAM): The average maturity of all the securities that comprise a 

portfolio that is typically expressed in days or years. 

 

Yield: The annual rate of return on a debt investment computed as though held to maturity 

expressed in percentages. 

 

Zero-Coupon Bonds/U.S. Treasury Strips: A bond which represents ownership of a single 

coupon or principal payment due on a U.S. Treasury bond.  “Zeros” or “strips” mature at face 



 

16 

 20232024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

value at a specified date in the future and make no payments until that date.  They always sell at a 

discount from face value. 

 

 



 

1 
 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2024 Investment Policy 

 

Submitted by  

Phonxay Keokham, CPA 

 Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Approved by the Board of Supervisors on  

November 28, 2023 

 



 

 
 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

1.0 INVESTMENT POLICY .................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 OBJECTIVE ........................................................................................................................................ 1 

3.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ...................................................................................................... 1 

4.0 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS ............................................................................................................... 2 

5.0 CONSTRAINTS SET BY GOVERNMENT CODE ............................................................................ 2 

6.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS........................................................................................................ 2 

7.0 DIVERSIFICATION ........................................................................................................................... 5 

8.0 MATURITY STRUCTURE ................................................................................................................ 5 

9.0 DEALER APPROVAL ........................................................................................................................ 5 

10.0 COMPETITIVE BIDDING ............................................................................................................... 6 

11.0 SWAPS AND TRADES .................................................................................................................... 6 

12.0 LOSSES ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

13.0 SAFEKEEPING................................................................................................................................. 6 

14.0 CONFIRMATION ............................................................................................................................. 6 

15.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS .................................................................................................................. 7 

16.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS...................................................................................................... 7 

17.0 CREDIT FOR INTEREST EARNINGS ............................................................................................ 7 

18.0 DIRECTED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 7 

19.0 OUTSIDE AGENCIES ...................................................................................................................... 8 

20.0 WITHDRAWALS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

21.0 REPORTING ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

22.0 COUNTY TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ...................................................................... 8 

23.0 INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................................................................ 9 

24.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ...................................................................................... 9 

25.0 BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN .................................................................................................. 10 

GLOSSARY ............................................................................................................................................ 11 

 

 



 

1 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

1.0 INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

The Investment Policy establishes the criteria for the prudent investment of pool participants’ surplus 

treasury funds and outlines the policies for maximizing the efficiency of the San Joaquin County 

(County) cash management system. In addition, the Investment Policy governs the deposit, 

safekeeping, and investment of all funds under the control of the County Treasurer-Tax Collector 

(Treasurer), as well as all related transactions and investment activities in accordance with California 

State Law. It does not apply to bond funds or other affiliated public agency assets that reside outside 

of the County’s Investment Pool. 

 

The Investment Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Treasurer with the Treasury Oversight 

Committee (Committee). Any modifications made thereto must be approved by the County Board of 

Supervisors (Board) and adopted by resolution. No person may engage in an investment transaction 

except as provided under the terms of the Investment Policy.  The Treasurer shall establish written 

Investment Policy procedures.  

 

2.0 OBJECTIVE  

 

The objective of the Investment Policy is to protect the surplus funds of all Investment Pool 

participants while providing for their cash flow requirements and enhancing their economic status. 

The County operates its investment program under the “Prudent Investor Standard” set forth by 

Government Code Section 53600.3. This affords the Treasurer a broad spectrum of investment 

opportunities provided that the investment is deemed prudent and allowable under California State 

Law.   

 

The criteria and priority for selecting investments are as follows: 

 

(a) Safety.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the County’s investment program.  The 

safety and risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal and/or 

interest. Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 

capital in the Investment Pool.   

 

(b) Liquidity.  Liquidity refers to the ability to access cash at any time with minimal risk of losing 

some portion of principal or interest.  The Investment Pool will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the County to meet all anticipated operating requirements.  Liquidity is an important 

investment quality considering an unanticipated need for funds may arise. 

 

(c) Yield.  Yield is the potential dollar earnings that an investment can provide and is also referred 

to as the rate of return.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the 

safety and liquidity objectives referenced above.   

 

3.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

 

The Board, as permitted under Government Code Section 53607, delegates the responsibility to 

invest or reinvest the funds of the County or to sell or exchange securities so purchased to the 

Treasurer who shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of 



 

2 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials and their procedures in the absence of the 

Treasurer.  

4.0 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS  

 

The following criteria represents the general framework by which the County’s Treasury investment 

program shall be conducted: 

 

(a) The laws of the State of California and the Prudent Investor Standard shall be the primary 

standards by which all County Treasury investments are transacted. 

 

(b) The basic premise underlying the Investment Policy is to ensure that the pooled funds are 

always safe and readily available.  

 

(c) Surplus treasury funds are the funds not required to meet the bank’s demand on the Treasury 

to redeem warrants or cover other County disbursement obligations on any given day.   

 

(d) Surplus treasury fund management and investment transactions are the responsibility of the 

Treasurer. 

 

(e) The Treasurer strives to invest all surplus funds in the Investment Pool by anticipating pool 

participant activities and needs through daily projections and cash flow forecasting. 

 

5.0 CONSTRAINTS SET BY GOVERNMENT CODE 

 

Government Code Sections 53601 and 53635 impose restrictions on the investments of government 

entities.  All such restrictions are to be adhered to in their entirety.  In addition, the Treasurer may 

impose further restrictions on investments if the Treasurer deems such action appropriate. The 

following section lists the only authorized investments of the County.   

 

6.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

 

The Treasurer’s authorization to invest is limited to the securities categorized below.  All securities 

must be U.S. dollar denominated.  The restrictions specified in Government Code Sections 53601 and 

53635 apply unless otherwise stated.  Authorized investments are as follows: 

 

(a) U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds (Maximum of 100%) 

 

U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds for which the full faith and credit of the U.S. are 

pledged for the payment of principal and interest.  There is no percentage limit on the total 

dollar amount that may be invested in this category. 

 

(b) State Obligations and California Local Agency Bonds (Maximum of 100%)  

 

Bonds, notes, warrants of the State or department, board, agency, or authority of the State.  

Bonds, notes, warrants of a local agency within the State or department, board, agency, or 



 

3 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

authority of a local agency within the State.  There is no percentage limit on the total dollar 

amount that may be invested in this category.  

 

(c) Obligations issued by A Federal Agency or a U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) 

(Maximum of 100%) 

 

Federal Agency or GSE obligation, participations, or other instruments, including those 

issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or U.S. 

government are authorized.  There is no percentage limit on the total dollar amount that may 

be invested in this category. 

 

(d) Banker’s Acceptances (Maximum of 40%)  

 

Bills of Exchange or Time Drafts (Banker’s Acceptances). Banker’s Acceptances may not 

exceed 40 percent of the Investment Pool, and no more than 30 percent may be invested in 

the Banker’s Acceptances of one commercial bank.  The limit for each issuer may be specified 

in the Treasurer's “Approved Banker’s Acceptance Issues”. 

 

(e) Commercial Paper (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Commercial Paper is an unsecured, short-term debt instrument issued by a corporation. 

Commercial Paper must have the highest categories of a nationally recognized statistical 

rating organization (NRSRO). The maximum maturity is 270 days.  The limit for each issuer 

is specified in the Treasurer’s “Commercial Paper Approved List”.  Commercial Paper may 

not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. 

 

(f) Time Deposits (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Certificates of Deposits issued by nationally or state-chartered bank, savings association, 

federal association, or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank.  The bank must have a branch 

or office in the County.  The bank must have a rating in the highest or second highest 

categories of an NRSRO. The limit for each issuer is specified in the Treasurer’s “Approved 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit List.”  The collateralization level will be 110 percent of 

market value for Certificate of Deposits.  The maximum maturity is one year.  Certificate of 

Deposits may not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. 

 

(g) Repurchase Agreements (Maximum of 100%) 

 

Term repurchase agreements may be collateralized by either U.S. Treasury securities or by 

any U.S. Federal Agency security. 

 

 Regardless of maturity, repurchase agreements must be collateralized at 102 percent (market 

value plus accrued interest).  Repurchase agreements shall only be made with dealers whose 

assets exceed $500 million and having either the highest commercial paper rating, of A or 

higher rating for the issuer’s debt, if any, as provided by a NRSRO.  There is no percentage 

limit on the total dollar amount that may be invested in this category. 



 

4 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

 All Repurchase Agreements with brokers/dealers will be done through a “Tri-Party Custodian 

Agreement” that has been approved, in writing, by the Treasurer. 

 

 All Repurchase Agreements with commercial banks will be governed by a Public Securities 

Association (PSA) agreement that has been approved, in writing, by the Treasurer.  
 

(h) Medium Term Notes (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Corporate Debentures (Medium Term Notes) that have a rating in the highest or second 

highest categories of a NRSRO.  Medium Term Notes must be issued by corporations 

organized and operating within the U.S.  The maximum maturity of such issues is three years.  

Floaters of the above issues are authorized if the maximum maturity does not exceed three 

years.  Medium Term Notes may not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. 

 

(i) Mutual Funds (Maximum of 20%) 

 

Mutual Funds, as defined in Government Code Section 53601, consist only of those 

investments authorized by the Investment Policy.  Mutual Funds may not exceed 20 percent 

of the Investment Pool. A thorough investigation of the fund is required prior to investing 

and due diligence must be conducted on an annual basis.  

 

(j) Specific Securities (Maximum per Approval) 

 

Specific securities as specified in the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement for 

monies pledged to the payment or security of bonds or other indebtedness as governed by 

Government Code Section 53601(m) must receive written approval from the Treasurer. 

 

(k) Bank Deposits (Maximum of 10%) 

 

Bank Deposits are interest-bearing active deposits in a state or national bank, savings 

association, or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally insured 

industrial loan company. These deposits must be properly collateralized at 110 percent in 

accordance with Government Code Section 53652. Deposits with any one depository may not 

exceed 10 percent of the Investment Pool.  

 

(l) Joint Powers Authority Programs (Maximum of 30%) 

 

Managed investment pools pursuant to Government Code Section 53601(p) for which 

shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to 

Government Code Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations authorized 

in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal proportional 

interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. Joint 

Powers Authority Programs may not exceed 30 percent of the Investment Pool. To be 

eligible under this section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have retained 

an investment adviser that meets the following criteria:  



 

5 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

  

(1)  The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission.  

(2)  The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities and 

obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive.  

(3)  The adviser has assets under management in excess of $500 million.      

 

(m) Supranationals (Maximum of 10%) 

 

U.S. Dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations which are rated in a 

rating category of “AA” or its equivalent by one NRSRO at time of purchase, issued or 

unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 

International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank, and eligible for 

purchase and sale within the U.S.  Supranationals may not exceed 10 percent of the Investment 

Pool. 

 

(n) Local Agency Investment Fund 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) of the State of California is an investment alternative 

created pursuant to Government Code Section 16429.1 for California’s local governments 

and special districts.  LAIF purchases securities under the authority of Government Code 

Section 16430 and 16480.4.   The Treasurer may invest up to the maximum amount permitted 

by LAIF.   
 

7.0 DIVERSIFICATION 

 
It is the policy of the Treasurer to diversify the pooled funds. Investments are diversified to 

minimize the risk of loss of principal and interest resulting from an overconcentration of assets in 

a specific maturity, issuer, or type of security. Diversification strategies shall be established by the 

Treasurer and periodically reviewed.  
 

8.0 MATURITY STRUCTURE 

 

To the extent possible, investments shall be made to match anticipated cash flow requirements. A 

minimum of 25 percent of the entire Investment Pool shall mature within 60 days to provide 

sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements. If for any reason the Investment Pool is not in 

compliance with the minimum maturity percentage, all new investments will be restricted to a 

maturity of 60 days or less until compliance is restored. No investment shall be made in any security 

with a maturity greater than five years unless it is approved by the Board. 

 

Annually, the Treasurer must give written approval for authorized staff to purchase securities with a 

maturity of one year or longer. 

 

9.0 DEALER APPROVAL    

 



 

6 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

All financial institutions used for the placement of investments must be approved by the Treasurer in 

writing.  The creditworthiness of all financial institutions will be reviewed by the Treasurer. The 

Treasurer will maintain a list of approved financial institutions authorized to provide investment 

services to the County. 

 

The Treasurer will not approve any broker, brokerage, dealer, or securities firm that has, within the 

past two years, made a political contribution in an amount exceeding the limitations contained in Rule 

G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, to the Treasurer, any member of the Board, or 

any candidate for these offices. 

 

All brokers are provided with the updated Investment Policy on an annual basis. 

 

10.0 COMPETITIVE BIDDING 

 

Bids for any investment shall be taken from a minimum of two banks or broker/dealers.  Awards will 

be made to the highest offer, giving consideration to safety, liquidity, a balanced investment pool, and 

diversification.  If two bids for a similar investment security are unavailable, then the second bid may 

be for another investment security with a similar maturity.  

     

11.0 SWAPS AND TRADES 

 

Securities may be swapped and traded for other eligible securities after calculating the gain between 

the buy and sell candidates in the transaction and approval by the Treasurer. 

 

12.0 LOSSES 

 

Generally, losses are acceptable on a sale before maturity and may be taken if reinvested proceeds 

will prevent the potential of a greater loss, provide increased liquidity, or earn a higher yield.  

Approval by the Treasurer is required.  

 

13.0 SAFEKEEPING 

 

Securities purchased from broker/dealers shall be held in third party safekeeping by the trust 

department of the County’s bank or other designated third-party custodian and in the County’s name. 

The third-party custodian shall be required to issue a safekeeping statement listing specific instrument, 

rate, maturity, and other pertinent information.  No securities will be held by the broker/dealer from 

whom they were purchased. 

 

Safekeeping of Repurchase Agreements is stipulated in the section titled “Authorized Investments.” 

 

14.0 CONFIRMATION 

 

All investment confirmations are to be reviewed for conformity with the original transaction.  

Discrepancies are to be reported to the Treasurer. 

 



 

7 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

15.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 

The Treasurer shall establish internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that the investment 

objectives are met and to ensure that the assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The 

Treasurer shall also be responsible for ensuring that all investment transactions comply with the 

Investment Policy and California State Law.  

 

The Treasurer shall establish a process for daily, monthly, quarterly, and annual reviews and the 

monitoring of investment program activity. Daily, the Treasurer or authorized Treasury personnel 

shall review the investment activity, as well as corresponding custodial and commercial bank 

balances and positions for compliance with the Investment Policy and guidelines. The County 

Auditor-Controller’s Office or the contracted external auditor shall conduct an annual audit of the 

investment program’s activities. 

 

16.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 

The Investment Pool shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return throughout 

budgetary and economic cycles commensurate with investment risk constraints and cash flow 

needs.  

The Treasurer’s investment strategy is both passive and active. Given this strategy, the basis used 

by the Treasurer to determine whether market yields are being achieved shall be to identify a 

comparable benchmark to the investment duration. (i.e. 90-day U.S. Treasury Bill, six-month U.S. 

Treasury Bill, Average Federal Funds Rate). Benchmarks may be modified over time based on 

changes in market conditions or cash flow requirements. 
 

17.0 CREDIT FOR INTEREST EARNINGS 

 

Interest earnings from the Investment Pool shall be credited to participating entities each quarter.  The 

credit is computed based on the average daily cash balance of funds on deposit during the quarter in 

the County Treasury. 

 

In accordance with Government Code Section 27013, authorized costs of investing, depositing, 

banking, auditing, reporting or otherwise handling or managing funds will be deducted from the total 

interest earnings prior to the interest earnings apportionment. 

 

18.0 DIRECTED INVESTMENTS 

 

The Treasurer may allow special directed investments for Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note 

(TRANs) proceeds or other special purposes.  The Treasurer will work with the entity to make a single 

directed investment.  For proceeds between $10 million and $50 million, that investment will be in a 

U.S. Treasury Bill.  For proceeds in excess of $50 million, the investment can be in either a U.S. 

Treasury Bill or a U.S. Treasury Note.  Upon the maturity of the investment, all funds will be 

deposited into the Investment Pool.  Any funds from the TRANs sale, not included in the investment, 

will be placed in the Investment Pool.  The charge for the investment will be $5,000, which is 

estimated to cover the actual expenses of the offices of the Treasurer and the County Auditor-

Controller. These expenses may include paying agent, safekeeping, establishing of entity funds, 



 

8 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

tracking, and recording the investment.  The Treasurer may negotiate a different charge if it is cost 

justified and appropriate.  Directed investments will be separate from the Investment Pool. 

 

19.0 OUTSIDE AGENCIES 

 

Local agencies not required to deposit funds with the County may place funds in the Investment Pool 

with the approval of the Treasurer.  All agencies must comply with this Investment Policy.  It is 

anticipated that most funds will be withdrawn from the Investment Pool by a warrant.  Wire transfers 

must be arranged with the Treasurer. 

 

20.0 WITHDRAWALS 

 

The Treasurer requires 24-hour notice on withdrawals of $1 million to $10 million, a seven-day notice 

on withdrawals between $10 million and $25 million, and a 30-day notice for amounts exceeding $25 

million. The Treasurer also reserves the right to work with any agency on the timing of a withdrawal 

exceeding $10 million if that withdrawal might affect the stability or predictability of cash flow in the 

County Treasury.  The Treasurer may refuse any withdrawal above $25 million which may negatively 

impact the stability and predictability of cash flow in the County Treasury.  The Treasurer may reduce 

or waive the required notice.    

 

21.0 REPORTING 

 

The Treasurer shall provide a monthly report to the Board, County Administrator, County Auditor-

Controller, and the Committee itemizing all Treasury investments by investment type, institution, date 

of maturity, amount of investment, rate of interest, and current market value.  Securities will be valued 

based on information from either the trustee, broker, the Wall Street Journal, or other sources 

approved by the Treasurer.  The market value for bank deposits, Certificates of Deposit, Repurchase 

Agreements of less than 30 days, LAIF, and Joint Powers Authority Programs will be at cost.  The 

report will include the weighted average maturity of the investments in the Treasury Pool, and a 

statement denoting the ability of the local agency to meet its expenditure requirements for the next 

six months. 

 

22.0 COUNTY TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 

The Committee will review and monitor the Investment Policy on an annual basis. The Committee 

shall require an annual audit to be conducted to determine the County Treasury’s compliance with the 

law and the Investment Policy. 

 

The Committee shall not direct individual investment decisions, select individual investment advisors, 

brokers, dealers, or impinge on the day-to-day operations of the County Treasury. 

 

A member may not be employed by an entity that has contributed to the campaign of a candidate for 

the office of local Treasurer or contributed to the campaign of a candidate to be a member of a 

legislative body of any local agency that has deposited funds in the County Treasury, in the previous 

three years or during the period that the employee is a member of the Committee (Government Code 

Section 27132.1). 



 

9 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

A member may not directly or indirectly raise money for a candidate for local Treasurer or a member 

of the governing board of any local agency that has deposited funds in the County Treasury while a 

member of the Committee (Government Code Section 27132.2).  

 

A member may not secure employment with, or be employed by, bond underwriters, bond counsel, 

security brokerages or dealers, or financial services firms, with whom the Treasurer is doing business 

during the period that the person is a member of the Committee or for one year after leaving the 

Committee (Government Code Section 27132.3). 

 

Committee meetings shall be open to the public and subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 

23.0 INDEMNIFICATION 

 

The standard of care to be used by the County’s officers or employees in all investment transactions 

shall be the Prudent Investor Standard (Government Code Section 53600.3), which is expanded as 

follows: 

 

When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing 

public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 

circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to the general economic 

conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a 

like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of funds of a  

like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity 

needs of the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual 

investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized 

by law.  

 

The above criteria are established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied 

in the context of managing the Investment Pool.  Investment officers acting in accordance with the 

Investment Policy shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk 

or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion, 

and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

 

24.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

No officer, employee, or member of the Committee may directly or indirectly accept or solicit from 

any person, corporation, or group having a business relationship with the Treasurer or Treasury-

related functions, any rebate, kickback, or anything of an economic value as a gift, gratuity, or 

honoraria. 

 

No officer or employee of the Treasurer shall, outside of working hours, engage in any profession, 

trade, business, or occupation, which is incompatible or involves a conflict of interest with his/her 

duties as a County officer or employee. 

 



 

10 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Investment officials shall refrain from personal business activity that may conflict with proper 

execution and management of the Investment Policy and the investment program or which could 

impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Investment officials must provide public disclosure 

required under Government Code Section 87203, et seq. 

 

The Treasurer and designated employees must annually file a Form 700 (Statement of Economic 

Interest) in accordance with the County’s Conflict-of-Interest Code. 

 

25.0 BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN 

 

In the event the Treasurer or authorized staff is unable to conduct normal business operations, the 

Treasurer has an agreement with the custody bank for a daily sweep of surplus funds into an 

interest-bearing account as well as the ability to transfer additional funds to money market and 

liquid accounts until normal operations are restored. Treasurer-imposed restrictions pertaining to 

investment type, investment amount, and investment percentages, as stated in the Investment Policy, 

will be temporarily suspended to allow for continued operations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

11 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

GLOSSARY 

 

Accrued Interest: The amount of interest that is earned but unpaid (not yet received) since the 

last interest payment date. 

 

Banker’s Acceptance (BA): A highly-liquid draft or bill of exchange accepted by a bank or trust 

company.  The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer. 

 

Broker: A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a transaction for which the broker receives 

a commission.   

 

Certificate of Deposit (CD): A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.  

Large denomination CDs may be marketable. 

 

Collateral: Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or repurchase 

agreement.  Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of public monies. 

 

Commercial Paper (CP): The short-term unsecured debt of corporations. 

 

Credit Risk: The risk that principal and/or interest on an investment will not be paid in a timely 

manner due to changes in the condition of the issuer. 

 

Custodian: A bank or other financial institution that keeps custody of stock certificates and other 

assets. 

 

Dealer: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in security transactions buying and  

selling securities for his own account. 

 

Discount Note:  Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a discount and 

redeemed at maturity for full face value. 

 

Diversification: Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent 

returns to avoid excessive exposure to any one source of risk. 

 

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE):  A type of financial services corporation created by 

the Federal Government to facilitate borrowing in specific sectors.  GSE bonds carry the implicit 

backing of the Federal Government. 

 

Interest: The amount earned while owning a debt security and generally calculated as a percentage 

of the principal amount. 

 

Internal Controls: Rules and procedures designed to ensure the integrity of financial and 

accounting information, accountability, and that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, 

theft, or misuse.  The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that 

these objectives are met.  

 



 

12 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Investment Policy: A concise and clear statement of the objectives and parameters formulated by 

an investor or investment manager for a portfolio of investment securities. 

 

Investment Pool: A portfolio with funds combined from more than one entity.   

 

Joint Powers Agreements (JPA): Entities created under Government Code Section 6509.7 that 

allow two or more public agencies to jointly exercise common powers and issue shares of 

beneficial interest to the participating public agencies and may invest in securities and obligations 

as described by subdivision (p) of Government Code Section 53601. 

 

Liquidity: The speed and ease with which an asset can be converted to cash without substantial 

loss of value. 

 

Local Agency: County, city, city & county, including a chartered city or county, school district, 

community college district, public district, county board of education, county superintendent of 

schools, or any public or municipal corporation. 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF): The LAIF is an investment alternative for California’s 

local government and special districts authorized under Government Code Sections 16429.1.  The 

LAIF is managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, with oversight by the Local Agency Investment 

Advisory Board.  All securities in LAIF are purchased under the authority of Government Code 

Sections 16430 and 16480.4.  The State Treasurer’s Office receives all securities on a delivery 

versus payment basis using a third-party custodian.  All securities are purchased at market, with 

market valuation conducted monthly. 

 

Market Value: The price at which a security can be traded. 

 

Master Repurchase Agreement: A written contract covering all future transactions between the 

parties to repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements that establishes each party’s rights in the 

transactions.  A master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right of the buyer-

lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event of default by the seller-borrower. 

 

Maturity: The final date upon which the principal or stated value of a security becomes due and 

payable. 

 

Medium Term Notes (MTN): Debt securities issued by a corporation or depository institution 

with a maturity ranging from nine months to five years.  The term “medium-term notes” refers to 

the time it takes for an obligation to mature and includes other corporate debt securities originally 

issued for maturities longer than five years, but which have now fallen within the five year maturity 

range.  MTNs issued by banks are also called “bank notes.” 

 

Money Market: The market in which short-term debt instruments (Treasury Bills, discount notes, 

commercial paper, and banker’s acceptances) are issued and traded. 

 

Mutual Funds: An investment company that pools money and can invest in a variety of securities, 

including fixed-income securities and money market instruments. 



 

13 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

 

Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO): Firms that review the 

creditworthiness of the issuers of debt securities, and express their opinion in the form of letter 

ratings (e.g. AAA, AA, A, BBB, etc.)  The primary rating agencies include Standard & Poor’s 

Corporation, Moody’s Investor Services, Inc., and Fitch Investors Service. 

 

Par:  The amount of principal that must be paid at maturity.  Also referred to as the face amount 

of a bond. 

 

Price: The amount of monetary consideration required by a willing seller and a willing buyer to 

sell an investment on a particular date. 

 

Prudent Investor Standard: A standard of responsibility which applies to fiduciaries.  In 

California, the rule is stated as “Investments shall be managed with the care, skill, prudence and 

diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person, acting in a like capacity 

and familiar with such matters, would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with 

like aims to accomplish similar purposes.” 

 

Principal: The face value or par value of an investment. 

 

Rate of Return: The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market 

price.  This may be the amortized yield to maturity on the bond or the current income return. 

 

Rating: Various alphabetical and numerical designations used by institutional investors, Wall 

Street underwriters, and commercial rating companies use to give relative indications of bond and 

note creditworthiness.   

 

Repurchase Agreement (RP or REPO): The purchase of securities, on a temporary basis, with 

the seller’s simultaneous agreement to repurchase the securities at a later date at a specified price 

that includes interest for the buyer’s holding period.  In essence, this is a collateralized investment 

whereby the security “buyer” lends the “seller” money for the period of the agreement. 

 

Risk: The uncertainty of maintaining the principal or interest associated with an investment due 

to a variety of factors. 

 

Rule G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board: Federal regulations to sever any 

connection between the making of political contributions and the awarding of municipal securities 

business. 

 

Safekeeping: A service to bank customers whereby securities are held for protection by the bank 

in the customer’s name. 

 

Safety: In the context of investing public funds, safety relates to the preservation of principal of 

an investment in an investment portfolio; local agencies address the concerns of safety by 

controlling exposure to risks. 

 



 

14 

 2024 |SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY  

Supranational:  An entity that is formed by two or more central governments with the purpose of 

promoting economic development for the member countries.  Examples include the International 

Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, and the Inter-

American Development Bank. 

 

Swap: A swap is any financial transaction that involves the simultaneous purchase of a security 

and the sale of another for the purpose of enhancing an investor’s portfolio.  Swap transactions of 

interest to California public investors include portfolio swaps and interest rate swaps. 

 

Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs): Notes issued in anticipation of receiving tax 

proceeds or other revenues at a future date. 

 

Treasury Bills: Non-interest-bearing discount securities with maturities under one year issued by 

the U.S. Treasury to finance the national debt. 

 

Treasury Bonds: Interest-bearing obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury with maturities that 

range from 10 to 30 years from date of issue. 

 

Treasury Notes: Interest-bearing obligations of the U.S. Treasury with maturities ranging from 

two to 10 years from date of issue. 

 

U.S. Government Agency Securities: Government sponsored obligations, participation, or other 

instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal 

agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. 

 

U.S. Treasury Securities: Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith and 

credit of the U.S.  Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk and are the benchmark for 

interest rates on all other securities in the U.S. and overseas.  The U.S. Treasury issues both 

discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds. 

 

Weighted Average Maturity (WAM): The average maturity of all the securities that comprise a 

portfolio that is typically expressed in days or years. 

 

Yield: The annual rate of return on a debt investment computed as though held to maturity 

expressed in percentages. 

 

 

 




	Treasury Oversight Committee Agenda (10-19-23)
	A - Treasury Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes for (10-20-22) Meeting
	B -  Financial Statements & Audit Report FY 2021-22 FINAL
	20230215144128618_0001.pdf
	20230215144128618_0002.pdf
	20230215144128618_0003.pdf
	20230215144128618_0004.pdf
	20230215144128618_0005.pdf
	20230215144128618_0006.pdf

	C - Monthly Portfolio Report - 20230930
	D1 - 2024 SJC Investment Policy - DRAFT REDLINE
	D2 - 2024 SJC Investment Policy - DRAFT
	E - Treasury Oversight Committee Compliance Questionnaire

